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IMPORTANT  NOTICE  REGARDING  ACCEPTANCE  OF  NOTICES
FOR  PUBLICATION  IN  THE  WEEKLY  “GAZETTE”

ATTENTION is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance of Notices for
publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of publication. All
Government Departments, Corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times of applications in respect
of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared by giving adequate time both from the
date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby ena2bling those interested in the contents of such notices to
actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect of corrections pertaining to notification will not be
entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e. notices
for publication in the weekly Gazette of 14th August, 2015 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 30th July, 2015.

Electronic Transactions Act, No. 19 of  2006 - Section 9
“Where any Act or Enactment provides that any proclamation, rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other matter shall be

published in the Gazette, then such requirement shall be deemed to have been satisfied if such rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other
matter is published in an electronic form of the Gazette.”

W. A. A. G. FONSEKA,
Government Printer (Acting)

Department of Govt. Printing,
Colombo 08,
22nd January, 2015.
This Gazette can be downloaded from www.documents.gov.lk
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Note.— Twentieth Amendment to the Constitution Bill was published as a supplement to the Part II of the Gazette of the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka of June 12, 2015.

N.B.—Part I:III of the Gazette No. 1,924 of 17.07.2015 was not published.
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Appointments, &c. by the President
No. 313 of 2015

MOD/DEF/2/01/ENL/03/ORC.

SRI   LANKA   ARMY—REGULAR  FORCE

Commission approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has been pleased to approve the
Commissioning of the under mentioned Warrant Officers as
Lieutenants (Quarter Master) in the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 04th June, 2014 in the order of
seniority shown below and their posting to the Regiments/Crops
stated against their names with effect from the same date.:-

1. S/675528 - Warrant Officer I - KURUWITA MUDIYANSELAGE

PRIYANTHA KUMARASINGHE KURUWITA - Sri Lanka Corps of
Military Police;

2. S/775503 - Warrant Officer I - SINHALAGE RANJITH KUMARA

- Military Intelligence Corps;
3. S/675475 - Warrant Officer I - UKKURALA SELLATHEGE

DISSANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE GAMINI DISSANAYAKE - Sri Lanka
Corps of Military Police;

4. S/276577 - Warrant Officer I - WELLAPPULI ARACHCHIGE

JAYAWARDENA - Sri Lanka Signal Crops;
5. S/750677 - Warrant Officer I - SUBASINGHE GAMAGE INDIKA -

Corp of Engineer Services;
6. S/275623 - Warrant Officer I - THENUWARA BADALGE SAMAN

KUMARA - Sri Lanka Signal Corps;
7. S/575197 - Warrant Officer I - UPUL NISHANTH DEVID

DHARMASIRI - Sri Lanka Army Service Corps;
8. S/650128 - Warrant Officer I - ARUNA SHANTHA WITHARANA

- Sri Lanka Army Medical Corps;
9. S/625923 - Warrant Officer I - WARNAKULA DUMITH PRIYAN

MENDIS WIJENAYAKE  - Sri Lanka Electrical and Mechanical
Engineers;

10. S/700568 - Warrant Officer I - AHANGAMA EGODAGE SAMAN

WIJEMANNA  - Sri Lanka Army General Service Corps;
11. S/775545 - Warrant Officer I - WEESING MUDIYANSELAGE

UPUL SENARATH BANDARA  - Military Intelligence Corps;
12. S/576037 - Warrant Officer I - WADUNOMBI ARACHCHIGE

MAHESH CHAMINDA PEIRIS  - Sri Lanka Army Service Corps;
13. S/152030 - Warrant Officer I - HALUWANA MUDIYANSELAGE

JAGATH MADUSHANKA BANDARA  - Sri Lanka Artillery;
14. S/359535 - Warrant Officer I - RAJAPAKSHAYALAGE SARATH

GAMINI  - Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;
15. S/235480 - Warrant Officer I - MADURA PRASANGA WARAWITA

- Sri Lanka Engineers;
16. S/576267 - Warrant Officer I - RANAWEERA KODITHUWAKKU

ARACHCHIGE ARUNA CHAMPIKA  - Sri Lanka Army Service
Corps;

17. S/355705 - Warrant Officer I - RANATHUNGA MUDIYANSELAGE

DARSHAKA NALIN KUMARA RANATHUNGA  - Sri Lanka Sinha
Regiments;

18. S/601090 - Warrant Officer I - NAWANTHUDUWAGE DINESH

MANJUKA SILVA  - Sri Lanka Army Ordnance Corps;
19. S/304017 - Warrant Officer I - ALGE WATHTHAGE PIYASENA

ALGEWATHTHA  - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
20. S/576281 - Warrant Officer I - WIJETHUNGA MUDIYANSELAGE

SISIRA KUMARA WIJETHUNGA  - Sri Lanka Army Service
Corps;

21. S/625817 - Warrant Officer I - LIYANAGE SANATH CHANDRASIRI

- Sri Lanka Electrical and Mechanical Engineers;
22. S/750701 - Warrant Officer I - MASALA GEDARA NANDANA

KUMARA MASALAGEDARA  - Corps of Engineer Services;
23. S/301936 - Warrant Officer I - DASANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE

SANDARAJ PREMATHILAKE DISSANAYAKE - Sri Lanka Light
Infantry;

24. S/407343 - Warrant Officer I - HATHTHOTUWA GAMAGE ASELA

SAMAN KUMARA  - Special Force Regiment;
25. S/510290 - Warrant Officer I - JAYAKODI ARACHCHILLAGE

KARUNARATHNE  - Vijayabahu Infantry Regiment;
26. S/750771 - Warrant Officer I - BODAWATTEGEDARA WASANTHA

RAJAPAKSHA  - Corps of Engineer Services;
27. S/237027 - Warrant Officer I - ADHIKARIGE GAMINI  - Sri

Lanka Engineers;
28. S/357377 - Warrant Officer I - BANDARALAGE ASHOKA

WIMALARATHNE  - Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment;
29. S/236504 - Warrant Officer I - WEERAPPULIGE JAYAWARDANA

RAMBANDA  - Sri Lanka Engineers;
30. S/85937 - Warrant Officer I - ASHOKA ILANGASINGHE HERATH

- Sri Lanka Army Medical Corps;
31. S/625388 - Warrant Officer I - DANGAHA GAMARALLAGE

RAVINDRA KARUNASENA  - Sri Lanka Electrical and Mechanical
Engineers;

32. S/100268 - Warrant Officer I - HEWAWITHARANA

ARACHCHILLAGE PIYAL WITHARANA  - Sri Lanka Armoured
Corps;

33. S/152384 - Warrant Officer I - SRINARAYANA NARASINGHE

WIJERAJ WIJENDRA GAMLADLAGE PREMARATHNE  - Sri Lanka
Artillery;

34. S/358279 - Warrant Officer I - ALAWATHTHA KANKANAMGE

SARATH PRADEEP KUMARA  - Special Force Regiment;
35. S/236047 - Warrant Officer I - PAHALA GEDARA WANNI

ARACHCHIGE CHANDRAPALA  - Sri Lanka Engineers;
36. S/276289 - Warrant Officer I - HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE

KUMARASINGHE HERATH  - Sri Lanka Signal Corps;
37. S/357846 - Warrant Officer I - KONDASINGHE PATABENDALAGE

SUNIL HERATH  - Sri Lanka Sinha Regiments;
38. S/356529 - Warrant Officer I - YADDEHI LIYANAGE GUNASIRI

SANTHA  - Sri Lanka Sinha Regiments;
39. S/454578 - Warrant Officer I - DISSANAYAKE SAMARAKOON

MUDIYANSELAGE PANSALE WATHTHE GEDARA KAPILA RATHNA

BANDARA  - Gajaba Regiment;
40. S/307356 - Warrant Officer I - DISSANAYAKE ARACHCHILAGE

LALITH GUNARATHNE  - Sri Lanka Light Infantry;
41. S/303572 - Warrant Officer I - EKANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE

IDAME WALAWWE AJANTHA BANDARA EKANAYAKE  - Sri Lanka
Light Infantry;
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42. S/304751 - Warrant Officer I - MILLAWITHANA ARACHCHIGE

PRIYANTHA MILLAWITHANA ARACHCHI  - Sri Lanka Light
Infantry;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
26th June, 2015.

07-1182

No. 314 of 2015

DIRF/RECT/252/AY (1).

SRI   LANKA   ARMY—REGULAR  FORCE

Commission approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has been pleased to approve the
Commissioning of the undermentioned Officer Cadet in the rank
of Second Lieutenant in the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army
with effect from 01st February, 2013, and his posting to the Sri
Lanka Army Medical Corps with effect from the same date.:-

C/56869 - Officer Cadet - KANDE VIDANALAGE GAYAN

MADUSANKA;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
26th June, 2015.

07-1181

No. 315 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/PRO/RNF/01/05.

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—REGULAR  NAVAL  FORCE

Confirmation approved by His Excellency the
President

Lieutenant-Commander (L) with effect from 19th October,
2014:-

Lieutenant (L) [(Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (L)]
WEERAHANNADIGE JANAKA SURANGA FERNANDO, NRL 1899, SLN;

Lieutenant-Commander (NP) with effect from 09th January,
2015:-

Lieutenant (NP) [(Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (NP)]
ILANDARAGE UDAYA JAYASHANTHA, NRP 1692, SLN;

Lieutenant-Commander (E) with effect from 11th January,
2015:-

Lieutenant (E) [(Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (E)] HERATH

MUDIYANSELAGE GAYAN KOSALA HERATH, NRE 2208, SLN;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
18th March, 2015.

07-1224/3

No. 316 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/PRO/RNF/01/04/I.

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—REGULAR  NAVAL  FORCE

Confirmation approved by His Excellency the
President

Lieutenant-Commander (C) with effect from 24th October,
2014:-

Lieutenant (C) [(Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (C)]
KARUNA ARACHCHILAGE LUCKY DHARMASENA, NRX 1670, SLN;

Lieutenant-Commander (E) with effect from 08th February,
2015:-

Lieutenant (E) [(Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (E)]
CHATHURA KANISHKA SIRIMANNA, NRE 2231, SLN;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
18th March, 2015.

07-1225/3
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No. 317 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/PRO/RNF/01/04/I.

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—REGULAR  NAVAL  FORCE

Confirmation approved by His Excellency the
President

Lieutenant-Commander (ND) with effect from 04th January,
2015:-

Lieutenant (ND) [(Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (ND)]
SISIRA GAJADHEERAGE NALIN PERERA, NRX 2224, SLN;

Lieutenant-Commander (CDO) with effect from 05th
February, 2015:-

Lieutenant (CDO) [(Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (CDO)]
SANJAYA CHATHURANGA PERERA, NRX 1762, SLN;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
18th March, 2015.

07-1225/2

No. 318 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/PRO/RNF/01/05.

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—REGULAR  NAVAL  FORCE

Confirmation approved by His Excellency the
President

Lieutenant-Commander with effect from 25th January, 2015:-
Lieutenant (Temporary Lieutenant-Commander] RANASINGHE

MUDIYANSELAGE SANJAYA JAYAWARDENA, NRX 2217, SLN;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
18th March, 2015.

07-1224/2

No. 319 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/164.

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—REGULAR  NAVAL FORCE

Retirement and Transfer to the Regular Naval
Reserve approved by His Excellency the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
undermentioned Officer from the Regular Naval Force of Sri
Lanka Navy and Transfer to the Regular Naval Reserve with
effect from 15th June, 2015.:-

Lieutenant Commander (L) - YAPA MUDIYANSELAGE KOLIYA YAPA

BANDARA, NRL 1384, SLN;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
18th May, 2015.

07-1180

No. 320 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/170.

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—REGULAR  NAVAL FORCE

Retirement and Transfer to the Regular Naval
Reserve approved by His Excellency the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
undermentioned Officer from the Regular Naval Force of Sri
Lanka Navy with effect from 06th July, 2015 and Transfer to the
Regular Naval Reserve on the same date.:-

Lieutenant Commander (ND) - ROSHAN HETTIARACHCHI, NRX
1749, SLN;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
17th June, 2015.

07-1027
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No. 321 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/RES/169.

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—REGULAR  NAVAL FORCE

Resignation of Commission approved by His
Excellency the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Resignation of
Commission of undermentioned Officer in the Regular Naval Force
of the Sri Lanka Navy with effect from 01st August, 2015.:-

Lieutenant Commander (E) - CHATHURA KANISHKA SIRIMANNA,
NRE 2231, SLN;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
17th June, 2015.

07-1178

No. 322 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/PRO/RNF/01/05.

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—REGULAR  NAVAL  FORCE

Promotion approved by His Excellency the President

To the Rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander with effect
from 12th June, 2014:-

Lieutenant PATHIRANNAHALAGE BUDDHIKA NAVEEN PATHMARATHNA,
NRX 1886, SLN;

To the Rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander with effect
from 27th September, 2014:-

Lieutenant GAMMANPILA IMIYAGE DON AMILA INDUWARA

DHARMARATHNA, NRX 1800, SLN;

To the Rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (E) with
effect from 27th September, 2014:-

Lieutenant (E) WEERASINGHE PARAKRAMAGE THUSITHA PRINCE
WICKRAMANAYAKE, NRE 2652, SLN;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
18th March, 2015.

07-1224/1

No. 323 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/PRO/RNF/01/04/I

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—REGULAR  NAVAL  FORCE

Promotion approved by His Excellency the President

To the Rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (E) with
effect from 08th February, 2015:-

Lieutenant (E) SAMARASINGHE ARACHCHIGE DON DAMITH NALAKA

SAMARASINGHE, NRE 2274, SLN;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
18th March, 2015.

07-1225/1

No. 324 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/165.

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—REGULAR  NAVAL FORCE

Retirement and Transfer to the Regular Naval
Reserve approved by His Excellency the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
undermentioned Officer from the Regular Naval Force of the Sri
Lanka Navy and Transfer to the Regular Naval Reserve with
effect from 01st June, 2015.:-

Lieutenant (S) - KATHRI ACHCHI PINNAWALAGE SISIRA SENARATHNE,
NRS 2398, SLN;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
18th May, 2015.

07-1222
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No. 325 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/RNF/COM.

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—REGULAR  NAVAL  FORCE

Commission approved by His Excellency the
President

To be Acting Sub Lieutenant with effect from 09th September,
2011:-

1. Midshipman - BODAWALA LEKAMALAGE LAKSITH

KARUNATHILAKA, NRM 2984, SLN;
2. Midshipman - SADEVE SULAKSHAMA WALATHARAARACHCHI,

NRM 2985, SLN;
3. Midshipman - LORENSU PATABENDIGE WARUNA MADUSHAN,

NRM 2986, SLN;
4. Midshipman - PELAKETIYAGE LAHIRU PRABATH RATHNASEKARA,

NRM 2987, SLN;
5. Midshipman - YASITHA BANDARA WEERASINGHE, NRM 2988,

SLN;

To be Acting Sub Lieutenant with effect from 04th May,
2014:-

1. Midshipman - WERAGODA RALALAGE AYESHMAN MALINDA

WERAGODA, NRX 3196, SLN;
2. Midshipman - KRISHNADASA MUDIYANSELAGE PRABODHA

CHINTHAKA BANDARA SENEVIRATHNE, NRL 3198, SLN;

To be Acting Sub Lieutenant with effect from 19th June,
2014:-

1. Midshipman - KAVINDU JAYASURIYA, NRX 3200, SLN;
2. Midshipman - DILUP RADIKA JEROM FERNANDO, NRX 3201,

SLN;
3. Midshipman - THISKUMARA GAMAGE LAHIRU VIDURANGA, NRX

3202, SLN;
4. Midshipman - CHAMATH NANJITHA WEHELLA, NRS 3203, SLN;
5. Midshipman - ATHAPATTHU WIJEKOON MUDIYANSELAGE ISHANKA

WIJEKOON, NRX 3204, SLN;
6. Midshipman - WEERAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE CHATHURA

MUDUSANKA WEERAKOON, NRX 3205, SLN;
7. Midshipman - AMARATHUNGA ARACHCHIGE SAJITH BHANUKA,

NRS 3206, SLN;
8. Midshipman - DASITHA SEPALA DAHANAYAKA, NRS 3207, SLN;
9. Midshipman - LAKSHAN RAJANTHA LOKUGAMAGE, NRP 3208,

SLN;
10. Midshipman - WANNAKU MUDIYANSELAGE DHANANJAYA KUMARA

HERATH, NRX 3209, SLN;
11. Midshipman - GALHENAGE GIMANTHA HANSAMAL ALWIS, NRX

3210, SLN;
12. Midshipman - PURANEGEDARA MUDIYANSELAGE THARINDU SUPUN

BANDARA, NRX 3211, SLN;

13. Midshipman - MALALA HETTI BANDARALAGE RANGANA SITHUM

UDARA JAYASINGHE, NRX 3212, SLN;
14. Midshipman - SUSEW HEWAGE THARINDU JAYAWARDANA, NRX

3213, SLN;
15. Midshipman - WALISUNDARA MUDIYANSELAGE RANU WAJIRANGA

BANDARA, NRS 3214, SLN;
16. Midshipman - MADUSHAN LAKSHITHA ILLAGOLLA, NRX 3215,

SLN;
17. Midshipman - HETTIARACHCHIGE DON HARITH KAVINDA, NRX

3216, SLN;
18. Midshipman - ABEYSINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE CHINTHAKA PRABATH

ABEYSINGHE, NRX 3217, SLN;
19. Midshipman - ATULUGAMAGE HARSHANA MAHASEN MORAWAKE,

NRP 3218, SLN;
20. Midshipman - THANNEGE NILINA MADUSHAN DISSANAYAKE, NRS

3219, SLN;
21. Midshipman - MAHADURAGE GAYASHAN NAVODHA MALDENIYA,

NRX 3220, SLN;
22. Midshipman - RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE UDARA

PRIYASHANTHA RATHNAYAKA, NRS 3221, SLN;
23. Midshipman - GAMAGE DON AROSH NISAYURU GAMAGE, NRX

3222, SLN;
24. Midshipman - RAJARATHNAM SUNDARARAJ MAHINDARAJ, NRP

3223, SLN;
25. Midshipman - KANUGALA WATTAGE NISAL THARUKA PERERA,

NRX 3224, SLN;
26. Midshipman - NIROSH NILANKA WICKRAMASOORIYA, NRX 3225,

SLN;
27. Midshipman - WIJENAYAKA PATHIRANAGE CHALANA MADHUSHAN,

NRS 3226, SLN;
28. Midshipman - SAMARAPPULI MADDUMA ARACHCHIGE ANJANA

RAMIS MELANA, NRX 3227, SLN;
29. Midshipman - HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE GIHAN HASITHA HERATH,

NRX 3228, SLN;
30. Midshipman - RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE HEMANTHA

JAYAWICKRAMA BANDARA RATHNAYAKE, NRX 3229, SLN;
31. Midshipman - WELLE KANKANAMGE PASAN CHAMEERA, NRS

3230, SLN;
32. Midshipman - SAMARAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE ARAVINDA

BANDARA DISSANAYAKE, NRX 3231, SLN;
33. Midshipman - KANNANGARA KORALAGE UDARA LAKMAL, NRX

3233, SLN;
34. Midshipman - AGAMPODI SUNETH MENDIS, NRX 3234, SLN;
35. Midshipman - RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE THIKSHANA ISARA

BANDARA RATHNAYAKA, NRS 3236, SLN;
36. Midshipman - MALLAWA ARACHCHILAGE MANTHILA, NRP 3238,

SLN;
37. Midshipman - CHANDRASEKARA MUDIYANSELAGE KASUN

MADHUSHANKA BANDARA, NRX 3239, SLN;
38. Midshipman - ATHTHANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE DHANUKA

LAKSHMAN ATHTHANAYAKA, NRP 3240, SLN;
39. Midshipman - GEEGANAGE RANDEEP NIROSHAN, NRX 3241,

SLN;
40. Midshipman - PATHTHAGE SHASHINDRA WATHSALA, NRX 3242,

SLN;
41. Midshipman - NARAYANA MUDIYANSELAGE SURESH ARAVINDA

DISSANAYAKE, NRX 3243, SLN;
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42. Midshipman - RAIGAM KORALAGE KASUN DEEPTHA, NRX 3244,
SLN;

43. Midshipman - HITHTHARA GEDARA DHANUSHKA KASUN

INDRARATHNA, NRS 3245, SLN;
44. Midshipman - WEERASOORIYA WIJESUNDHARA RAJAPAKSHA

WASALA MUDHIYANSELAGE MADHAWA LAHIRU BANDARA

WEERASOORIYA, NRS 3246, SLN;
45. Midshipman - IRUGAL BANDARALAGE SUJITH PRASAD

SEMASINGHE, NRX 3247, SLN;
46. Midshipman - RANKOTH GEDARA RANJITH SURANGA

GUNAWARDENA, NRX 3248, SLN;
47. Midshipman - AMUGODA KANKANAMGE DON RAVEEN SANUJA

KULARATNE, NRX 3249, SLN;
48. Midshipman - MINURA MANITHA WICKRAMANAYAKA ARACHCHI,

NRX 3250, SLN;
49. Midshipman - BANDULAGE GAMINI MADHUSHANKA BANDARA

DISSANAYAKE, NRX 3251, SLN;
50. Midshipman - JALATH RALALAGE LAHIRU ISHARA JAYARATHNA,

NRX 3252, SLN;
51. Midshipman - DANASEKERA MUDIYANSELAGE RAJEEWA

PRIYASANKA DANASEKERA, NRX 3253, SLN;
52. Midshipman - MAGALAGE GIHARA SHANAKA PERERA, NRX

3254, SLN;
53. Midshipman - KURUPPU JAYAWARDANALAGE SAJITH CHANAKA,

NRX 3256, SLN;
54. Midshipman - KALUWAGGALAGE RANGANA PRAMOD

KALUWAGGALA, NRX 3257, SLN;
55. Midshipman - WATHUPITIYE GEDARA ARUNA SRI SANDARUWAN

SENADEERA, NRX 3258, SLN;
56. Midshipman - KUSHAN ISHARA THENNAKOON, NRP 3259, SLN;
57. Midshipman - MITIPATABADHIRALALAGE AROSH GESHAN SILVA,

NRX 3260, SLN;
58. Midshipman - CHATHUDAM SADHANA HETTIARACHCHI, NRX

3261, SLN;
59. Midshipman - PONNAMPERUMA ARACHCHIGE PRABUDDHA

DANANJAYA WIJERATHNA, NRX 3263, SLN;
60. Midshipman - LAHIRU PRAMINDA WADISINGHE, NRS 3264,

SLN;
61. Midshipman - THILINA ISHARA ABEYSEKARA, NRE 3265, SLN;
62. Midshipman - WELIKALA RALAHAMILAGE CHENADA BHANU

SITHARA WELIKALA, NRP 3266, SLN;
63. Midshipman - MADAME ARACHCHIGE DAYAN THIWANKA

KUMARASIRI, NRE 3267, SLN;
64. Midshipman - GEEGANA ARACHCHIGE MAYURA MADUSANKA,

NRX 3268, SLN;
65. Midshipman - SHASHIKA IRESHA WARNAKULASOORIYA, NRL

3269, SLN;
66. Midshipman - THANIPPULI ARACHCHILAGE PRASAD SUDARSHANA

PEMASIRI, NRE 3270, SLN;
67. Midshipman - SAVINDA MANUPRIYA JANSZ, NRL 3271, SLN;
68. Midshipman - RUVINDU SANKANATHA WICKRAMARACHCHI, NRS

3272, SLN;

69. Midshipman (E) - HATHNAGODAGE CHANAKA AMITH

MADUSANKA, NRE 3273, SLN;
70. Midshipman - THALPAWILA KANKANAMGE ISHARA NUWAN

KUMARA, NRE 3275, SLN;
71. Midshipman - DUNUMALA PATABANDIGE PIUM BASURU

JAYASANKA, NRL 3276, SLN;
72. Midshipman - NISSANKA MUDIYANSELAGE ANKELIPITIYE GEDARA

NANDANA RANJITHA KUMARA, NRS 3277, SLN;
73. Midshipman - MEDDEGODA RALLAGE DINESH MADUSHANKA

CHANDRASIRI, NRE 3278, SLN;
74. Midshipman - PRABATH THILINA ATHUKORALA, NRE 3279,

SLN;
75. Midshipman - DONIKKU HEWA THILINA MADUSANKA DE SILVA,

NRX 3281, SLN;
76. Midshipman - SALUWADANA WALAUWE ESHAN HASARANGA

BANDARA LEWLE, NRS 3282, SLN;
77. Midshipman - NISHSHANKA ARACHCHIGE ASITHA SURANGA, NRE

3283, SLN;
78. Midshipman - SENADHI RANNAHALAGE RANDIKA MAHESH

BANDARA, NRS 3284, SLN;
79. Midshipman - MADURAPPULIGE MANJULA LAKSHAN, NRE 3285,

SLN;
80. Midshipman - ELLAWALA LIYANAGE CHANDU ASANGA PERERA,

NRE 3286, SLN;
81. Midshipman - ATTANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE SUPUN INDUNIL

BANDARA ATTANAYAKE, NRE 3288, SLN;
82. Midshipman - ANNAKKAMULLA DAWAGE CHARITHA ANURADHA

LANKACHANDRA, NRX 3289, SLN;
83. Midshipman - HAPUACHCHIGE NALAKA DAMAYANTHA

HAPUACHCHIGE, NRE 3290, SLN;
84. Midshipman - PULASTHI JEROME BAKELMUN, NRX 3291, SLN;
85. Midshipman - DINIDU UDARA SATHARASINGHA, NRX 3292,

SLN;
86. Midshipman - PATHIRANNAHALAGE HIRAN SHANAKA

ABEYRATHNE, NRX 3293, SLN;
87. Midshipman - KONARA MUDIYANSELAGE DARSHANA DANANJAYA

KONARA, NRX 3294, SLN;
88. Midshipman - SATHYAJITH WIJESINGHE, NRE 3295, SLN;
89. Midshipman - HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE KASUN BANDARA

HINDAGALA, NRE 3296, SLN;
90. Midshipman - NETHTHASINGHA APPUHAMILAGE THIWANKA

YASASSRI, NRX 3297, SLN;
91. Midshipman - HATTUWAN MUDIYANSELAGE SASITHA

CHATHURANGA BANDARA RAJAPAKSHE, NRX 3298, SLN;
92. Midshipman - KALUHETTI RANDENIYAGE HARSHANA CHAMAL,

NRE 3299, SLN;
93. Midshipman - NAKKAVITA KANKANEMALAGA SUPUN SULOCHANA

MADUJITH GUNESEKARA, NRS 3300, SLN;
94. Midshipman - WICKRAMASINGHE KOLONNAGE LEVAN THARINDU

WICKRAMASINGHE, NRS 3302, SLN;
95. Midshipman - KORALAGE JAYATHU LAKMAL RUPASINGHE, NRX

3304, SLN;
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96. Midshipman - DAYAN SENAKA WEERASEKARA, NRX 3306,
SLN;

97. Midshipman - HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE UDAYANGA SAMINDIKA

HERATH, NRL 3307, SLN;
98. Midshipman - WICKRAMASINGHA MUDIYANSELAGE ERANGA

KASUN BANDARA ABEYSINGHE, NRL 3308, SLN;
99. Midshipman - KALINGA SUPUN MADUSANKA, NRX 3309, SLN;

100. Midshipman - MALLEHEWA VIDANALAGE DON HASHANTHA

VIDANAGE, NRX 3310, SLN;
101. Midshipman - AKALANKA PUMAL NARANTHOTA, NRX 3311,

SLN;
102. Midshipman - LIYANA ARACHCHIGE KASUN BHANUKA LAKSHAN,

NRX 3312, SLN;
103. Midshipman - KANDE GEDARA SAJITH CHATHURANGA

WIJITHASIRI, NRX 3313, SLN;
104. Midshipman - ARANPATH MUDIYANSELAGE NUWAN MALINTHA

BANDARA ARANPATH, NRX 3314, SLN;
105. Midshipman - HARSHAN SHAMINDA LIYANAARACHCHI, NRX

3315, SLN;
106. Midshipman - NIPUNA VIMUKTHI ARIYATHILAKA, NRL 3316,

SLN;
107. Midshipman - WICKRAMA ARACHCHIGE RAJITHA HARSHANATH

WIJESINGHE, NRX 3317, SLN;
108. Midshipman - SAHANPATH SANJEEWA ATUKORALA, NRX 3318,

SLN;
109. Midshipman - WEJEWEERA RATHNAYAKA THARINDU MADUSANKA,

NRS 3320, SLN;
110. Midshipman - AMARASINGHE ARACHCHIGE JAYANEEL

AMARASINGHE, NRX 3321, SLN;
111. Midshipman - NANEDIRI DEWAGE KUSHAN SAMPATH RANAWAKA,

NRL 3322, SLN;
112. Midshipman - LORENSU HEWAGE KUSITH THILANKA SRINATH,

NRS 3323, SLN;
113. Midshipman - SAJITH THARAKA SERASINGHE, NRP 3324, SLN;
114. Midshipman - DAWUNDAGE VIRAJ MADUWANTHA PREMASIRI,

NRP 3325, SLN;

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP, RSP, psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
05th December, 2014.

07-1240

No. 326 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/VNF/TRN/53.

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—VOLUNTEER  NAVAL
FORCE

Transfer from the Volunteer Naval Force to the
Volunteer Naval Reserve approved by His Excellency

the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Transfer of the
undermentioned Officer from the Volunteer Naval Force to the
Volunteer Naval Reserve with effect from 14th May, 2015.:-

Lieutenant Commander (VNF) - ADIKARI MUDIYANSELAGE

SENANAYAKE BANDARA ADIKARI, NVX 5398, SLVNF;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
18th May, 2015.

07-1223

No. 327 of 2015

MOD/DEF/03/02/VNF/RES/52.

SRI   LANKA   NAVY—VOLUNTEER  NAVAL
FORCE

Resignation of Commission approved by His
Excellency the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the resignation of
Commission of undermentioned Officer in the Volunteer Naval
Force of Sri Lanka Navy with effect from 01st June, 2015.:-

Sub Lieutenant (VNF) - HEWA ALANKARGE LILARATHNA

WIMALAKEERTHI, NVX 5771, SLVNF;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B. M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
18th May, 2015.

07-1179
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No. 328 of 2015

MOD/DEF/10/03/PRO/5T.

SRI   LANKA   AIR  FORCE

Promotions approved by His Excellency the
President

THE undermentioned Officer is promoted to the rank of Temporary
Air Vice Marshal on the date stated against his name:-

Air Commodore - CHANDANA PRABATH WELIKALA, (01396) Admin
- 01.10.2014;

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP, RSP, psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
15th October, 2014.

07-1121

No. 329 of 2015

MOD/DEF/10/03/RET/53.

SRI   LANKA   AIR  FORCE

Retirement approved by His Excellency the
President

THE under mentioned Officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air
Force with effect from 01st July, 2013:-

Group Captain NAMBU NANAYAKKARA DOLAGE ATHULA

NANAYAKKARA, (01545) - Administrative Regiment Branch;

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban
Development.

Colombo,
22nd May, 2013.

07-1029

No. 330 of 2015

MOD/DEF/10/10/RET/55.

SRI   LANKA   AIR  FORCE

Retirement approved by His Excellency the
President

THE under mentioned Officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air
Force with effect from 15th September, 2013:-

Wing Commander KEERTHI HERATH EKANAYAKE, (01790) -
Administrative Regiment Branch;

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban
Development.

Colombo,
07th June, 2013.

07-1030

No. 331 of 2015

MOD/DEF/10/03/PRO/10.

SRI   LANKA   AIR  FORCE

Promotions approved by His Excellency the
President

THE undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank of
Substantive Squadron Leader with effect from the date stated
against their names.:-

Flight Lieutenant - ANTHONY RUWAN GOONAWARDENA, (02643) -
Medical, 16.09.2014;

Flight Lieutenant - KUMARATHGE CHATHURI DILHANI, (02660) -
Dental, 01.01.2015;

By His Excellency’s Command,

B . M. U. D. BASNAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
27th February, 2015.

07-1122
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No. 332 of 2015

D/AF/31/2.

SRI   LANKA   AIR  FORCE

Commissioning approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has been pleased to approve the
Commissiong of undermentioned Officer Cadets as Pilot Officers
in the Sri Lanka Air Force with effect from the 14th January,
2008 and their posting to the branches of the service with effect
from the same date.:-

11467 - Officer Cadet - WIJAYA KEERTHI RANKOTH PATHIRANAGE

GAYAN SAMEERA DHARMASIRIWARDANA, OpsAir (02746);
11464  - Officer Cadet - SENADHEERA PATHIRENNAHALAGE UPUL

KAUSHALYA SENADHEERA, Admin (02747);
11472  - Officer Cadet - ANDENIYE GEDARA CHAMARA

CHATHURANGA YASAPALA, OpsAir (02748);
11458  - Officer Cadet - GAMLAKSHAGE DON MALINDA RUKSHAN

GAMLAKSHAGE, GD/P (02749);
11461  - Officer Cadet - GARDI ARACHCHILAGE THILINA GARDI

ARACHCHI, GD/P (02750);
11463  - Officer Cadet - HADUNPATHIRA KORALALAGE AKHILA

DE ALWIS, Ad/Regt (02751);
11469  - Officer Cadet - WADUTHANTHRI RAMEDHA DHANUSHKA

JAYAWARDHANA, OpsAir (02752);

11455  - Officer Cadet - JAYAWICKRAMA ARACHCHIGE RAJEEW

JAYAWICKRAMA, GD/P (02753);
11457  - Officer Cadet - DAHAM RAVEENDRA RANDUNUGE, GD/P

(02754);
11470  - Officer Cadet - JAYASINGHA ARACHCHIGE KASUN

JAYAWICKRAMA, OpsAir (02755);
11427  - Officer Cadet - RAVI SAMPATH THENUWARA, OpsAir

(02756);
11460  - Officer Cadet - AMARATUNGA ARACHCHIGE DHANUKA

THARANGA AMARATUNGA, GD/P (02757);
11471  - Officer Cadet - WALPITAGE DON ERANGA HASITH

WALPITA, OpsAir (02758);
11424  - Officer Cadet - MADDHUMA PATABENDIGE KASUN THILINA

KUMARA, GD/P (02759);
11468  - Officer Cadet - SEYAD THAUFEEK NUSRI HANZIL, OpsAir

(02760);
11456  - Officer Cadet - NAMBUKARAWASAM ARIYARATHNAGE

PRASAD PRIYAKEERTHI, E/Eng (02761);

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban
Development.

Colombo,
02nd October, 2009.

07-1028

Government Notifications

My No. : RG/NB/11/2/07/2014/msgq$ie.

NOTICE   UNDER   THE   LAND   REGISTERS   RECONSTRUCTED   FOLIO   ORDINANCE   (CAP. 120)

I  HEREBY give notice under Section 04 of the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land Register Folios,
particulars of which appear in Column 1 of the Schedule hereto, affecting the lands described in Column 2, there of which have been
found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which
are shown in Column 3 of the said Schedule.

2. The provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the Office of the
Registrar of Lands Homagama, 17.07.2015 to 31.07.2015 between the hours of 10.00 a. m. to 3.00 p. m. on all working days.

3. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional  folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any particulars
alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing addressed to the undersigned
which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the Office of the Registrar General not later than 07.08.2015. The matter in
respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim
must be accompanied by all documentary evidence relies upon the support of it.

E. M. GUNASEKARA,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.  
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SCHEDULE

Particulars of Damaged Particulars of Land Particulars of Deeds Registered
Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 232 of Volume 1045 All that allotment of land marked Lot 11 depicted 01. Deed of Transfer No. 299 written
of Division G of the land in Plan No. 1560 dated 08.08.1996 made by and attested by S. D. N. Fernando,

  Registry Homagama S. Siripala, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Notary Public on 17.06.1999
  in Colombo District. “Wellangiriya Estate” situated at Hokandara in

Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the District of 02. Deed of Mortgage No. 300 written
Colombo, Western Province bounded on the, and attested by S. D. N. Fernando,

Notary Public on 17.06.1999
North by : Lot 10;
East by : Lot 13 and 12; 03. Deed of Gift No. 1832 written and
South by : Lot 07 in Plan No. 1516; attested by K. P. Fernando, Notary
West by : Lot D in Plan No. 3989; Public on 03.01.2005
Extent : 00A., 00R., 10P.

07-1047

My No. : RG/NB/11/2/33/2015/msgq$ie.

NOTICE   UNDER   THE   LAND   REGISTERS   RECONSTRUCTED   FOLIO   ORDINANCE   (CAP. 120)

I  HEREBY give notice under Section 04 of the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land Register Folios,
particulars of which appear in Column 1 of the Schedule hereto, affecting the lands described in Column 2, there of which have been
found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provisional folios and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which
are shown in Column 3 of the said Schedule.

2. The provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the Office of the
Registrar of Lands Delkanda, 24.07.2015 to 07.08.2015 between the hours of 10.00 a. m. to 3.00 p. m. on all working days.

3. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional  folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any particulars
alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing addressed to the undersigned
which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the Office of the Registrar General not later than 14.08.2015. The matter in
respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim
must be accompanied by all documentary evidence relies upon the support of it.

E. M. GUNASEKARA,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.  

SCHEDULE

Particulars of Damaged Particulars of Land Particulars of Deeds Registered
Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 58 of Volume 2952 All that land called “Kekunagahawatta” situated 01. Executors Conveyance No. 1925
of Division M of the Land at Pitakotte in Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in written and attested by

  Registry Delkanda in Colombo the District of Colombo, Western Province Y. V. R. Balasooriya, Notary
  District. bounded on the, Public on 03.06.2006.

North by : Lot 5; 02. Deed of Gift No. 2012 written and
East by : Beddagana Road; attested by Y. V. R. Balasooriya,
South by : Property of A. Perera; Notary Public on 26.01.2007.
West by : Lot 3
Extent : 00A., 00R., 19.20P.

07-1129
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THE  PILGRIMAGE  ORDINANCE

Sithandy  Sri-Sithira  Velayutha  Suwamy Temple
Festival – 2015

IT is hereby notified for the information of the pilgrims who attend the
above festival and of the others concerned that the above festival
commences on 14th of August, 2015 with the ceremony of hoisting the
flag and terminates on the 29th of August, 2015.

The attention of the pilgrims who attend the above festival and
others concerned is drawn to the regulation published in the Government
Gazette No. 9886 of 16.07.1984 which will be inforce during the
period of the festival.

U. UTHAYASRITHAR,
Divisional Secretary.

Divisional Secretariat,
Eravur Pattu,
Chenkalady.

07-1115

PERIYAKADDU  ST. ANTONY’S  CHURCH
FESTIVAL – 2015

IT is hereby notified for General Information that the above festival
will commence 24.07.2015 and end 02.08.2015.

The attention of the General Public is drawn to the regulation
published in the Government Gazette Nos. 9978 and 10105 dated
27.05.1949 and 26.05.1950 respectively.

The standing regulation published will be in force during the period
of festival.

M. K. BANDULA HARISCHANDRA,
District Secretary/Government Agent,

Vavuniya.

Kachcheri,
Vavuniya,
06th July, 2015.

07-1160

ANNUAL  ESALA  MAHA  PERAHARA  OF
SAPUGODA,  KAMBURUPITIYA–2015

IN terms of Regulations framed under the Pilgrimage Ordinance
(Chap. 175) published in the Government Gazette No. 308 dated 27th
June, 1984, it is hereby notified that Annual Esala Maha Perahara of
Sapugoda Ilangamgoda Purana Rajamaha Vihara (Sapugoda

Vidyaniketha Pirivena) - 2015 of Kamburupitiya in Matara District,
Southern Province will be held from 21st of July to 31st July, 2015.

N. H. M. W. W. L. HERATH,
Divisional Secretary,

Kamburupitiya.

Divisional Secretariat of Kamburupitiya.
03rd June, 2015,

07-1215

ESALA  PERAHARA  OF  BOLTHUBE  SAMAN
DEVALAYA–2015

01. THE “Kap Situweema” Ceremony of Esala Perahara, 2015
was held auspiciously on 17th July.

* The “Uda Maluwa Perahera” will be held from 17th July to
27th July.

* The “Maha Perahera” will be held from 27th July to 31st July.
* The Water - cutting ceremony will be held at the “Walahun Ella

Mukalana” water spring on 01st August and the Perahera
will be over.

02. The lands of Mr. M. K. Louis Signgno and M. K.
Podimahaththaya to the North Quarter. Mr. Sirinimal and
Mr. M. K. Wijedasa to the East quarter, Mr. Ranbandara’s
“Galpadiwaththa” land to the South quarter and Mr. Wijehami
and Mr. Nobert Chinthamani to the West quarter are allocated
for the accommodation of the pilgrims and see the Perahera.

03. Preparing food items in and around the shrine terrace, Bodhi
tree terrace and devala premises is prohibited.

04. All the trades are prohibited in the upper floor, “Dandu Hela”,
dagoba terrace and “Rathage” terrace.

05. Trades will be allowed in the following areas in the way that the
Perehara will not be obstructed.

* from the main stone staircase of the throne palace of the right
side of the down street.

* From the “Ratha ge” terrace will not the dogoba potion to the
dancing room in the east.

* The area prescribed by me and as well the areas to the bottom
of the east and south and to the east boundary of the Devalaya.

06. Trades are totally prohibited in the camp area; in areas expect
mentioned by the above 04th and 05th statements.

07. Parking provide vehicles at the main road is totally prohibited.
All the traffic including bicycles and carts cannot be taken into
the camp area devoid of a license issued by the officer in
charge of the camp.
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08. Notice will be published for marking aware of the procedures
of leasing of lands for trade in charge of the camp.

09. The temporary constrictions in the leased lands must be under
the instruction of the health departments. As the festival is
over, the trades themselves have to take off the temporary
building and refusals including polythene should be disposed
under the public health inspector’s instructions.

10. Only the vehicles having the license for the Esala Perehara
festival are allowed to the enter the festival premises.
Accordingly, the following routes are not allowed for vehicles
to take in.

11. Dewala premises access road by Colombo-Badulla road via
divisional secretariat junction.

* Dewala premises access road via Thotapalla and Pokunegama.
* Dewala premises access road via Prithwaththa, Galwaththa

Devala area.
* Permitted vehicles that reach Devala Premises can be parked

at the school Ply Ground.

12. It is completely prohibited to photograph and vedio the
“Diggaya” and upper floor of the devalaya without permission.

J. L. C. K. JAYASINGHA,
Divisional Secretary,

Imbulpe.

07-1214

Revenue & Expenditure Returns
UNIVERSITY  OF  SRI  JAYEWARDENEPURA

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st December,  2013

Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies

1. General

The Financial Statements of the University have been prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles and the
Sri Lanka Public sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) on Historical Cost convention. Transactions recorded at the value prevailing
at the dates when the assets were acquired, the liabilities were incurred and funds received in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles and are consistent with those used in the previous years.

1.1 Comparative Information

To Facilitates comparison, relevant balances pertaining to the previous year have been reclassified to confirm to current years
classification and presentation.

2. Assets and the basis of their valuation

2.1 Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

The Property, Plant and Equipment are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation. All assets have been recorded at cost of
purchase with incidental expenses. Assets received as donations have been valued at their cost.

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment received as donation were capitalized and amortized as revenue over the useful life of
the related asset as per SLPSAS 07.

Depreciation is charged on Straight-Line basis  at the following rates per annum in order to write off the cost of such assets over
their estimated useful life.

Land -
Building - Including Structures 5%
Furniture and Fittings 10%
Office Equipment 20%
Books and Periodicals 20%
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Motor Vehicles 20%
Lab and Teaching Equipment 20%
Cloaks 20%
Sports Goods 20%
Other Fixed Assets 10%
(Including Water Supply, Electricity Scheme and Telephone)

2.1 (a)
The value of  Property Plant and  Equipment purchased out of generated funds & various project funds were shown as “Contribution
to Capital out Lay from Outside Grants”.

2.1 (b)
Rs. 5,900,000 worth of Mitsubishi Montero Motor Car was donated by Ministry of Higher Education in 2012.

2.1 (c)
During the year Rs. 15,405,608.66 worth of assets were received to the University from the Higher Education for Twenty-first
Century Project. Details of Assets is shown below. As the ownership of the assets are not yet transferred to the University, the cost
of the Assets were not shown as University Assets.

QIG Grant Lab and Teaching Equipment 2,565,034.66
Office Equipment 1,103,000.00

UDG Grant Library Books 97,779.00
Furniture 2,277,890.00
Office Equipment 85,750.00
Lab and Teaching Equipment 9,276,155.00

––––––––––––
Total 15,405,608.66

––––––––––––––––––––––––

2.2 Inventories
The First in First Out method (FIFO) is adopted to value cost of inventories. Inventories were physically verified and valued at cost
to ascertain the current value as at the Balance Sheet date.

2.3 Loans and Advances to Staff :
Actual Loan Balance to be recovered from staff members is considered as receivable.

3. Provisions for Gratuity

Provisions for gratuity has been calculated as per the Gratuity Act, No. 12 of 1983. This provision is not externally funded.

4. Provision for Accruals and Liabilities

Provision for Accruals and Liabilities are provided based on the estimations and available supporting documents.

5. Receivables

A sum of Rs. 96,325,693.84 is due from employees on account of Breach of Contracts as at 31.12.2013. After considering the nature of
receivable and amount received on violation of bond and obligations it is decided to change the accounting policy from the accrual basis
to the cash basis with effect from 01st January, 2011. Therefore Rs. 68,253,385.42 shown in note 05.01 is relevant only for the period
up to the 31st December, 2010.

6. Accounting for Grants

Recurrent grants are recognized in the Income and Expenditure Statement on cash basis. Cost of rehabilitation of Fixed Assets and Capital
Grants for construction and new work recognized either as work in progress or Capital Assets where necessary.

7. Income Recognition

7.1 Government Grants for Recurrent Expenditure, Student Bursaries and Mahapola were recognized on cash basis.
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7.2 Revenue is recognized in cash basis over the period of instruction to match with the relevant expenditure of the respective course.

8. Prior Period Errors

Prior period errors in calculation of depreciation and amortization of special grant of IRQUE (IDA Credit 3781 CE) project have corrected
during this period. Accordingly corrections were done retrospectively and restated the comparative figures. (Schedule E).

9. Accounting for Government Grant for Capital Expenditure

Government Grant for the capital expenditure has presented in the financial statements in accordance with the LKAS 20. According to
the accounting standard capital grant has recognized as deferred income in the statement of financial position and amortized over the useful
life of the asset.

Financial Statements - 2013

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2013

(Figures shown to the nearest Sri Lankan Rupee)

As at 31st December, 2013 As at 31st December, 2012
Restated

Rs. Rs.

Assets
Non-Current Assets

Property Plant  &  Equipment 1,344,491,268 1,118,566,835
Capital Work in Progress 134,495,102 124,421,560
Investments 425,465,093 260,727,751

––––––––––– –––––––––––
1,904,451,463 1,503,716,146
––––––––––– –––––––––––

Current Assets
Inventories 47,191,045 48,724,952
Sundry Debtors & Receivables 133,941,434 116,853,172
Loans & Advances to Staff 85,713,919 81,480,747
Advances & Pre Payments 105,159,524 90,446,161
Cash and Cash Equivalents 19,299,710 20,772,250

–––––––––– ––––––––––
391,305,632 358,277,282
–––––––––– ––––––––––

–––––––––––– –––––––––––
Total Assets 2,295,757,095 1,861,993,428

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––

Equity and Liabilities :

Equity
Capital Grant-Spent 1,310,717,599 1,095,887,239
Capital Grant-UnSpent 2,076,843 725,679
Other Capital Grant-UGC 4,743,765 7,584,061
Capital Grant-Vehicles-(Budget Circular-150) 10,870,000 14,555,000
Special Project- IRQUE (IDA Credit -3781 CE) 16,639,613 24,184,755
Contribution to Capital Outlay from Outside Grants 14,149,665 17,734,966
Gifts & Donations 51,058,921 41,319,880
Retained Earnings 109,544,186 89,036,853

–––––––––––– –––––––––––
1,519,800,593 1,291,028,433

–––––––––––– –––––––––––
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Reserves and Restricted Funds
Specific Reserves 51,360,863 37,505,456
Capital Reserve 25,574,237 25,671,311
Endowment Funds 26,327,642 17,799,656
Miscellaneous Projects & Research Grants 39,759,748 34,566,276
Deferred Income-Extension Programmes 100,026,780 13,878,524

–––––––––––– –––––––––––
243,049,270 129,421,223

–––––––––––– –––––––––––
Non-Current Liabilities

Provision for Gratuity 322,430,040 293,972,676
–––––––––––– –––––––––––

322,430,040 293,972,676
–––––––––––– –––––––––––

Current Liabilities
Deposits Refundable 6,987,268 26,935,572
Accrued Expenses 122,551,337 85,080,483
Payables 80,938,588 35,555,042

–––––––––––– –––––––––––
210,477,193 147,571,097

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––
Total Equity & Liabilities 2,295,757,095 1,861,993,428–––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––

Dr. N. L. A. KARUNARATNE, K. G. BRITTO, A. I. N. PASQUAL,
Vice-Chancellor. Registrar. Bursar.

17th October, 2014.

STATEMENT  OF COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31ST DECEMBER, 2013

(Figures shown to the nearest Sri Lankan Rupee)

2013 2012
Restated

Rs. Rs.
Revenue
Government Grant - Recurrent 1,541,846,000 1,297,868,000
Government Grant - Rehabilitation, Maintenance and Others 93,951,402 7,300,000
UGC Special Recurrent Grant for Payment of Security Service - 4,000,000
Bursaries 39,375,200 21,945,600
Profit on Sale of Motor Vehicle 2,007,530 -
Mahapola Scholarship 105,986,000 132,438,150
Internal  Income 323,443,189 210,490,445
Amortization of Government Grants and Donations 173,116,320 199,887,673
Provident Fund Contribution Arrears on Reckoning of COLA/UGC Contribution - 22,564,240
Pension Contribution Arrears on Reckoning of  COLA/UGC Contribution - 9,510,145

–––––––––––– –––––––––––
Total Revenue 2,279,725,642 1,906,004,253

–––––––––––– –––––––––––

As at 31st December, 2013 As at 31st December, 2012
Restated

Rs. Rs.



533I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2015'07'24
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 24.07.2015

Expenses
Personal Emoluments 1,332,797,583 1,089,575,284
Travelling Expenses 9,708,196 11,706,312
Supplies 70,206,910 61,401,364
Maintenance Expenditure 83,911,225 24,503,027
Contractual Services 252,818,668 204,976,567
Other Recurrent Expenses 187,095,588 162,465,234
University Township Project 3,605,597 -
Depreciation 173,713,342 270,189,981
Bursaries 39,375,200 21,945,600
Mahapola Scholarship 105,986,000 132,438,150

–––––––––––– –––––––––––
Total Expenses 2,259,218,308 1,979,201,519–––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––
Excess of Expenditure Over Income for the Year 20,507,333 (73,197,266)

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––

CASH  FLOW  STATEMENT  FOR  THE  YEAR  ENDING  31ST   DECEMBER,   2013

As at As at
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Restated
Rs. Rs.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Surplus/(deficit) from Ordinary Activities 20,507,333 (73,197,266)
Adjustments
Depreciation 173,713,342 270,189,981
Profit on Sale of Motor Vehicle (2,007,530) -
Interest From Investments (32,063,545) (15,749,848)
Provision for Gratuity 44,972,181 27,114,906
Amortization of Capital Grant (150,196,736) (74,025,147)
Amortization of Vehicle Grant (3,685,000) (3,235,833)
Amortization of Contribution to Capital Grant from Faculty of Graduate Studies (5,195,738) (4,905,477)
Amortization of Donation (6,493,705) (3,861,027)
Amortization of IRQUE Grant (7,545,142) (113,860,189)
Other grants spent relevant to previous year - 1,360,771
Assets write off 1,748 25,780
Staff Development Grant Recurrent Nature Expenditure (1,589,634) -
Government Grant - Rehabilitation, Maintenance and Other (93,951,402) (7,300,000)

––––––––––––– –––––––––––––
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Working Capital Changes (63,533,828) 2,556,651

––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

Increase/Decrease in Inventories and Stocks 1,533,907 (12,244,136)
Increase/Decrease in Sundry Debtors and Receivables 2,183,955 17,280,053
Increase/Decrease in Loan and Advances to the Staff (4,233,172) 2,224,448
Increase/Decrease in Advances and Prepayments (14,713,363) 2,429,436
Increase/Decrease in Capital Reserve (97,074) (23,620)
Increase/Decrease in Accrued Expenses 37,470,854 19,154,477
Increase/Decrease in Deposits Refundable (19,948,304) (2,394,223)
Increase/Decrease Payables 45,383,546 (14,754,139)

–––––––––––– –––––––––––
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities after Working Capital Changes (15,953,479) 14,228,947

–––––––––––– –––––––––––

2013 2012
Restated

Rs. Rs.
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Gratuity Payment (16,514,817) (11,989,913)
–––––––––––– –––––––––––

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (32,468,297) 2,239,034
–––––––––––– –––––––––––

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (318,035,536) (79,864,315)
Sale Proceed on Sale of Mortar Vehicle 2,007,530 -
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment from Other Grants - (106,929,552)
Interest from Investments 12,791,328 8,089,140
Capital Work in Progress (73,834,346) (65,479,207)
Investments (164,737,342) (73,082,809)

–––––––––––– –––––––––––
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (541,808,366) (317,266,743)

–––––––––––– –––––––––––

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Government Grant-Capital 454,579,000 234,000,000
Treasury Deposit Account - -
IT Grant-UGC-Faculty of Applied Science -
IT Grant - UGC-Library - 1,000,000
Other Grant-Ministry of Higher Education - “Three Languages Programme” 1,750,000
Security Fence for Swimming Pool & Build for Stupa - -
Strengthening Staff  Development Activities 4,500,000 -
Endowment Fund 8,527,986 (7,639,568)
Specific Reserve 13,855,407 26,991,346
Contribution to Capital Outlay - 1,758,733
Research Grant 5,193,473 6,268,785
Extension Programmes 86,148,256 (34,365,807)

––––––––––– –––––––––––
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 572,804,124 229,763,490

––––––––––– –––––––––––
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,472,539) (85,264,220)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of period (Note 01) 20,772,250 106,036,470
––––––––––– ––––––––––

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of period (Note 01) 19,299,710 20,772,250
––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––

Notes  to  the  Cash Flow Statement

Note 1

As at As at
Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents 31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Rs. Rs.

Treasury Fund

People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-6-2315454 (Recurrent Grant) 35,747 4,468
People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-3-2315455 (Capital Grant) 251,927 8,336
People’s Bank-Corporate Banking Division-A/c No. : 004-1-001-0-0210877 89,517 761,824
People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-9-2315457-Faculty of Medical Sciences 609,160 1,867,763

––––––––– –––––––––
Sub Total 986,351 2,642,391

––––––––– –––––––––

As at As at
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Restated
Rs. Rs.
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Non Treasury Funds

People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-8-2315467 (Faculty of Graduate Studies) 98,489 4,180,761

People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-6-2315473 (SIDA SAREC) 1,388,034 1,388,034

People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-4-2315474 (SIDA SAREC) 601,789 601,789

People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-8-2315472 (Student Relief Fund) 113,198 121,271

People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-1-2315456 (External Examinations) 1,572,222 2,331,907

People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-7-0000-629-Golden Jubilee Fund Account 91,078 108,220

People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-4-0002229-Faculty of Management Studies and

                                                          Commerce-Faculty Development Fund 3,149,194 5,302,323

People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-5-0005005-Faculty of Humanities and Social

                                                          Sciences-Social Sciences and Humanities Fund 2,903,204 963,147

People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-4-7709343-Development Fund-Faculty of

                                                          Medical Sciences 3,363,548 3,124,416

People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-1-001-10010952-Centre for Dengue Research-

                                                          Faculty of Medical Sciences 95,166

People’s Bank-Gangodawila-A/c No. : 097-4-021-8-0010915-US Dollar Account-Faculty of

                                                          Medical Sciences -Foreign Student Income 4,934,667

–––––––––– ––––––––––
Sub Total 18,310,589 18,121,869

–––––––––– ––––––––––
Petty Cash Imprest

General Account 2,750 7,990

Faculty of Graduate Studies - -

Faculty of Medical Sciences 20 -

HETC Project - -

External Examination - -
–––––––––– ––––––––––

Sub Total 2,770 7,990
–––––––––– –––––––––

Total 19,299,710 20,772,250
–––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––

2.1 Qualified Opinion

In my of opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this report, the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the University of Sri Jayawardenepura as at 31st December, 2013 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.

W. P. C. WICKRAMARATNE,
Acting Auditor General.

07-1089

As at As at
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Rs. Rs.
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Miscellaneous Departmental Notices
REGIONAL  DEVELOPMENT  BANK

IN pursuant to a resolution of Regional Development Bank (previosly
Sabaragamuwa Development Bank) proposed approval by the Board
of Directors under clause 04 of recovery of Loan (special provisions)
Act, No. 04 of 1990 by the Bank and as amended by clause No. 40
of Regional Development Bank Ordinance Act, No. 41 of 2008.

Koruwa Kankanamalage Don Anton Suwaris.
Account Number: 330065200001.

The proposed special resolution was uanimously passed as
given below in the meeting bearing No. 2010/04 and was Scheduled
to be held on 27.04.2010 by the Board of Directors of Regional
Development Bank (previously Sabaragamuwa Development
Bank) and the said Koruwa Kankanamlage Don Anton Suwaris
of Anton tyre service has evade in settlement of outstanding
recoverable as per mortgage Deed bearing No. 7639 dated
16.03.2009 certified by Mrs. Kumudini Manthrirathne, Kiriella
Attorney-at-Law and Notary Public for the recovery of loan due
to the Regional Development Bank the sum of Rupees Nine Lakhs
and Fifty-Five Thousand Seven Hundred Forty and cents Sixty-
eight (Rs. 955,740.68) and Eight Lakhs Eighty-two Three Hundred
Sixty-six and cents Ninety-seven (Rs. 882,366.97) with interest
from 20.04.2010, 28% annually up to the date of Auction, VAT
auction expenses including advertising charges and for recovering
of balance loans less if any received to sell by Public Auction of
the properties detailed in the Scheduled as given below which
mortgaged to the Regional Development Bank (previously
Sabaragamuwa Development Bank) by mortgaged bearing
No. 7639 and by Mr. P. K. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of
No. 134, Baddagana Road, Kotte.

THE SCHEDULE

The property on deed of Transfer bearing No. 7000 dated
21.12.2006 certified by Mrs. Kumudini Manthrirathne, Notary Public
and clear possession on power of deed No. 7207 dated 17.09.2007
certified by the said above Notary Public.

All that divided and defined allotment of land area bearing No. 154
dated 29.12.1997 Matuwagala, Kuruwita Korale Uththuru Uda
Paththuwa Matuwagala, Rathnapura District in the Sabaragamuwa
Province bounded on North by Land received long Road and Lot
No. 17 and East by land reserved long road and the balance portion
of the land, on South by balance portion of the land and canal, on West
by Lot No. 17 and canal containing in extent Eighteen perch point Nine
Zero (00A., 00R., 18.90P.) alias 0.0478 Hectare spacious land
precise land block Lot No. 18 as per Plan No. 3322 dated 09.06.2007
re-surveyed and made by Mr. W. A. Gamini Wijesinghe, Licensed
Auctioneer and bounded on the North by road reservation and Lot
No. 17 and East by road reservation and balance portion of the land
and South by balance portion of the land and canal and West by Lot
No. 17 and canal extent of perch Eighteen point Nine Zero

(00A., 00R., 18.90P.) spacious land and trees and fruits together with
everything else standing thereon with right of usage access road.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Board of Director Secretary.

07-1039

PEOPLE’S  BANK—MID  CITY  BRANCH (176)

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank
Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of

1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank, under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 23.01.2014.

Whereas, St. Anne’s Distributors (Private) Limited a Company
duly incorporated under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 and
having its Registered Office at 34/14, Elie House Road, Colombo
15, and Anne Rumanthi Wijayakulasuriya, Anthony Marius Nimal
Wijakulasuriya being the Directors of the said Company have
made default in payment due on Mortgage Bond No. 5230 dated
10.02.2011 attested by Mrs. A. Deepthi R. Mendis, Notary Public
of Colombo and there is now due and owing to the People’s Bank
a sum of Rupees Four Million Five Hundred and Seventy-four
Thousand One Hundred and Ninety and cents Thirty
(Rs. 4,574,190.30) on the said Bond.

The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the powers
vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as
amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the aforesaid
Company and it’s above mentioned Directors by the said Mortgage
Bond be sold by Public Auction by Mr. E. S. Ramanayake,
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the sum of
Rupees Four Million Five Hundred and Seventy-four Thousand
One Hundred and Ninety and cents Thirty only (Rs. 4,574,190.30)
together with further interest on Rupees Four Million Three
Hundred and Fifty Thousand only (Rs. 4,350,000) at the rate of
Seventeen decimal Seven Percent) 17.7% per annum from
09.08.2013 as at date of sale with costs and other charges of sale
less payments (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked as “Lot
11A3” depicted in Plan No. 4973 dated 24.02.2005 and made by
H. Anil Peiris, Licensed Surveyor situated in Ward No. 5 (Lunupokuna)



537I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2015'07'24
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 24.07.2015

within the Municipality and District of Colombo Western Province
and which said Lot 11A3, is bounded on the North by Lot 11a in Plan
No. 4260A, bearing Assessment No. 34/14A, Elie House Road and
Lot 11A2, and on the East by Lot No. 11A2 and premises bearing
Assessment No. 34/13, Elie House Road and on the South by
premises bearing Assessment No. 34/13, Elie House Road and
premises bearing Assessment No. Garden 68, Lower Street, Andrew’s
Place and on the West by Lot No. 11A1 in Plan No. 4260A bearing
No. 34/14A, Elie House Road and containing in extent Seven decimal
Three Six Perches (0A., 0R., 7.36P.) or 0.018625 Hectare, and
registered under A 1059/124 at the Colombo Land Registry.

Together with the right of way and all other servitude rights over
and along Lot 11A3 (means of access) depicted in Plan No. 4973
aforesaid.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked as “Lot X”
depicted in Plan No. 2448A dated 30.09.2003 and made by M. D. N.
T. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called and known as portion
of “Kongahawatta now known as Kalahagahawatta” situated at
Urukalana now known as Samurdigama Village in Dasiya Pattu of
Aluthkuru Korale within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Minuwangoda
in the District of Gampaha Western Province and which said “Lot X”
is bounded on the North-east by Lot A in Plan No. 2448 dated
03.09.2003 made by M. D. N. T. Perera, Licensed Surveyor on the
South-east by Pradeshiya Sabha Road and on the South-west by
Pradeshiya Sabha Road and on the North-west by Lot 1A in Plan
No. 2351 dated 15.11.1995 made by K. Nadaraja, Licensed Surveyor
and containing in extent Twenty-two decimal Eight Perches (0A.,
0R., 22.80P.) together with buildings, plantations and everything else
standing thereon. And registered under C994/211 at Negombo Land
Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Colombo North.

People’s Bank,
Zonal Head Office-(Wester Zone-01),
No. 11, Duke Street,
Colombo 01.

07-1156

HATTON   NATIONAL  BANK  PLC—NUWARA-
ELIYA  BRANCH

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Vaithilingam Rajendran.
Rajendran Thusinath alias Rajendran Dushinathan.

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC
held on 25th June, 2015 it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas, Vaithilingam Rajendran and Rajendran Thusinath
alias Rajendran Dushinathan as the Obligors have made default
in payment due on Bond No. 5714 dated 29th May, 2013 attested
by A. P. Kanapathipillai, Notary Public of Nuwara-Eliya excuted
in respect of the property morefully described in the First Schedule
hereto made in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC and there is
now due and owing to the Hatton Nation Bank PLC as at 30th
April, 2015 a sum of Rupees Fourteen Million Three Hundred and
Three Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty and cents Thirty-nine
only (Rs. 14,303,860.39) on the said Bond and,

Whereas Vaithilingam Rajendran and Rajendran Thusinath
alias Rajendran Dushinathan as the Obligors have made default
in payment due on Bond No. 3221 dated 11th July, 2013 attested
by M. S. Perera, Notary Public of Kandy executed in respect of
the property morefully described the Second Schedule hereto
made in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC and there is now due
and owing to the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 30th April, 2015
a sum of Rupees Seven Million Seven Hundred and Ninety-eight
Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty-eight and cents Three only
(Rs. 7,798,668.03) on the said Bond and,

Whereas the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC
under the power vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the
properties and premises morefully described in the First and
Second Schedules hereto and mortgaged to Hatton National Bank
PLC by the said Bond Nos. 5714 and 3221 be sold by Public
Auction by D. Kelaart, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for
recovery of the said sum aggregating to (Rs. 22,102,528.42)
together with further interest from 01st May, 2015 to date of sale
together with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less
payments (if any) since received.

THE FIRST SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 2
depicted in Plan No. Nu 1406 dated 19.06.1991 made by A. N. Alwis,
Licensed Surveyor, from and out of the land called Cretan Village
situated at Park Road bearing assessment No. 6/1, Military Road in
Ward No. 7 within the Grama Niladhari’s Division of Nuwara Eliya
Central-535D in the Municipal Council Limits of Nuwara Eliya in Oya
Palatha Korale within the Divisional Secretary’s Division of Nuwara
Eliya in the District of Nuwara Eliya Central Province and bounded
on the North by Lot 3, premises bearing assessment No. 6, Military
Road and Lot 1, on the East by Lots 1 and 6, on the South by Lots 6,
8 and 4, on the West by Lots 4 and 3 and containing in extent Nought
decimal Nought Five Nine Eight Hectares (Hect. 0.0598) and together
with the building and everything else standing thereon. Registered
under Volume/Folio A 76/226 at the District Land Registry,
Nuwara Eliya.

Together with the right of Common Road Access over and along
all the stripes of lands reserved for Road in the said Preliminary Plan
No. Nu 1406.
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Above land has been recently surveyed and described as follows:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 2
depicted in Plan No. 998 dated 14.05.2013 made by N. Liyanage,
Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land called Hawaeliya Pathana
situated at Military Road bearing assessment No. 6/1 now 9/2,
Havelock Drive within the Grama Niladhari’s Division of Nuwara
Eliya Central-535 D in the Municipal Council Limits of Nuwara Eliya
in Oya Palatha Korale within the Divisional Secretary’s
Division of Nuwara Eliya in the District of Nuwara Eliya Central
Province and bounded on the North by Assessment No. 6, Military
Road and Lot 1 in P Plan No. Nu 1406, on the East by Lots 1 and 6
in P Plan No. Nu 1406, on the South by Lots 6, 8 (Road) and 4 in
P Plan No. Nu 1406, on the West by Lots 4 and 3 in P Plan No. Nu
1406 and containing in extent Twenty-three decimal Six Perches
(0A., 0R., 23.6P.) and together with the building and everything else
standing thereon.

Together with the right of Common Road Access over along Lot
1 in Plan No. 998 dated 14.05.2013 made by N. Liyanage, Licensed
Surveyor.

THE SECOND SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 2
depicted in Plan No. 3082 dated 11.07.1986 made by D. L. D. Y.
Wijewardena, Licensed Surveyor, situated at Kandapola Village
within the Grama Niladhari’s Division of Kandapola-534 in the
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Nuwara Eliya in Oyapalatha Korale
within the Divisional Secretary’s Division of Nuwara Eliya in the
District of Nuwara Eliya Central Province and bounded on the North
by Lot 15 in Plan No. 112, on the East by Lot 3, on the South by Park
Estate Road, on the West by Lot 1 and containing in extent Three
decimal Four Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 3.40P.) together with the
buildings and everything else standing thereon and Registered under
Volume/Folio A 140/268 at the District Land Registry, Nuwara Eliya.

K. A. L. T. RANAWEERA,
DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

07-1134/5

HATTON   NATIONAL  BANK  PLC—NUGEGODA
BRANCH

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Arachchige Suneth Malinga Lokuhewa.

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC
held on 25th June, 2015 it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas, Arachchige Suneth Malinga Lokuhewa as the Obligor
has made default in payment due on Bond No. 5918 dated 15th
October, 2014 attested by M. P. M. Mohotti, Notary Public of
Colombo in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC and there is now
due and owing to the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 05th May,
2015 a sum of Rupees Six Million Three Hundred and Forty-seven
Thousand Five Hundred and Ninety-seven and cents Forty-one
only (Rs. 6,347,597.41) on the said Bond and the Board of
Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC under the power vested
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the property and premises
morefully described in the Schedule, hereto and mortgaged to
Hatton National Bank PLC by the said Bond No. 5918 be sold by
Public Auction by P. Muthukumarana, Licensed Auctioneer of
Colombo for recovery of the said sum of Rs. 6,347,597.41 together
with further  interest from 06th May, 2015 to date of sale together
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less payments
(if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1B
depicted in Plan No. 2159A date 08.05.1984 (more correctly date
23rd May, 1989) made by A. E. Wijesuriya, Licensed Surveyor from
and out of the land called Melfort Estate together with the buildings
and everything standing thereon bearing Assessment No. 34/5,
Gemunupura 5th Lane, situated at Kotalawala within the Grama
Niladhari Division of Kothalawala 473 and Divisional Secretary’s
Division and the Municipal Council Limits of Kaduwela in the Palle
Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo Western
Province and which said Lot 1B is bounded on the North by Lots 1A
and T (Reservation for Road 20 feet wide) in Plan No. 2159, on the
East by Lot H in Plan No. 2159, on the South by Lot 3A1 and on the
West by Lot J in Plan No. 2159 and containing in extent Ten Perches
(0A., 0R., 10P.) according to the said Plan No. 2159A and registered
under title G 649/42 at the Land Registry of Homagama.

Together with the right of way in over and along Lot 3 (Reservation
for Road 20 feet wide) depicted in Plan No. 008032 dated 12th
February, 2008 made by K. D. W. D. Perera, Licensed Surveyor and
morefully described in the Second Schedule in the aforesaid Mortgage
Bond No. 5918.

K. A. L. T. RANAWEERA,
DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

07-1134/4
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HATTON   NATIONAL  BANK  PLC—WADDUWA
BRANCH

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Mr. Munithunga Ranaweera Arachchige Suminda.

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC
held on 25th June, 2015 it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas, Munithunga Ranaweera Arachchige Suminda as the
Obligor have made default in payment due on Bond No. 4622 dated
25th August, 2014, attested by P. V. N. W. Perera, Notary Public
of Panadura in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC and there is
now due and owing to the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 27th
April, 2015 a sum of Rupees Five Million Six Hundred and Eighty-
four Thousand Five Hundred and Fourteen and cents Twenty-two
only (Rs. 5,684,514.22) on the said Bond and the Board of
Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC under the power vested
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the property and premises
morefully described in the Schedule, hereto and mortgaged to
Hatton National Bank PLC by the said Bond No. 4622 be sold by
Public Auction by L. B. Senanayake, Licensed Auctioneer of
Colombo for recovery of the said sum of (Rs. 5,684,514.22)
together with further interest from 28th April, 2015 to date of sale
together with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less
payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 4
depicted in Plan No. 2320 dated 10th July, 2011 made by S. B.
Abeysinghe, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land called
Delgahawatta together with the buildings and everything standing
thereon situated at Pamunugama-Alubomulla in Grama Niladhari
Division No. 694A-Imbulliha within the Talpiti Badda Sub Office
Limits of Bandaragama Pradeshiya Saba and in the Divisional
Secretariat of Bandaragama in Panadura Talpiti Debadda of Panadura
Totamune in the District of Kalutara Western Province and which
said Lot 4 is bounded on the North by Lots 2 and 3 in the said Plan
No. 2320, on the East by Lot c of the same land, on the South by Road
from Houses to Main Road and Lot A3 of the same land in Plan
No. 1986 dated 17th February, 2010 made by S. B. Abeysinghe,
Licensed Surveyor and on the West by Lot A3 of the same land in the
said Plan No. 1986 and Lot B of the same land containing in extent
Thirty-six decimal Five Five Perches (0A., 0R., 36.55P.) according to
the said Plan No. 2320 and registered under title E 26/12 at the Land
Registry of Panadura.

K. A. L. T. RANAWEERA,
DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

07-1134/3

HATTON   NATIONAL  BANK  PLC—MAWANELLA
BRANCH

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Al-Mubariz (Pvt) Ltd.

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of  Hatton National Bank PLC
held on 25th June, 2015 it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas, Al-Mubariz (Pvt) Ltd as the Obligor has made
default in payment due on Bond No. 1978 dated 01st August, 2013,
attested by M. K. Perinparaja, Notary Public of Kalmunai in
favour of Hatton National Bank PLC and there is now due and
owing to the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 30th April, 2015 a
sum of Rupees Eleven Million Nine Hundred and Sixty-four
Thousand Seven Hundred and Twenty-eight and cents Thirty-six
only (Rs. 11,964,728.36) on the said Bond and the Board of
Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC under the power vested
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the property and premises
morefully described in the Schedule, hereto and mortgaged to
Hatton National Bank PLC by the said Bond No. 1978 be sold by
Public Auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of
Colombo for recovery of the said sum of (Rs. 11,964,728.36)
together with further interest from 01st May, 2015 to date of sale
together with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less
payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 2012/325A dated 01.08.2012 made by S. T. M.
Shaheeth, Licensed Surveyor (of three allotments (Lots 1 - 3) of  land
called “Ullayak Kadu” (Part TP 277222) being re-survey of Lot 1 and
sub division of Lot 3 depicted in Plan No. 2012/325 of 08.06.2012
made by S. T. M. Shaheeth, Licensed Surveyor) situated at Sinna
Ullai Village P/05 Grama Sevaka Division within Pradeshiya Sabha
Limits of Pottuvil in the Divisional Secretariat area of Pottuvil in
Panamaipatt of Ampara District. Eastern Province in the Democratic
Republic of Sri Lanka and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North
by Road (P.S), on the East by presently land claimed by K. Sikkanthar,
on the South by land claimed by I. N. Iradnarajah, on the West by
presently land claimed by M. I. M. Thahir and containing in extent of
Twenty-three decimal Three Perches (0A., 0R., 23.3P.) Perches or
0.0590 Hectares together with everything else standing therein.

According to a recent Survey Plan No. 2013/527 dated 20.04.2013
made by S. T. M. Shaheeth, Licensed Surveyor, the aforesaid land is
depicted as Lot - 01 in the said Plan.

K. A. L. T. RANAWEERA,
DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

07-1134/2
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HATTON   NATIONAL  BANK  PLC—
BORALESGAMUWA  BRANCH

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Mr. Siyambalapitiyage Malitha Mangala Gunasekera.

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC
held on 25th June, 2015 it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas, Siyambalapitiyage Malitha Mangala Gunasekera as
the Obligor have made default in payment due on Bond No. 1920
dated 25th August, 2014, attested by A. M. D. A. K. Adikary,
Notary Public of Colombo in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC
and there is now due and owing to the Hatton National Bank PLC
as at 05th May, 2015 a sum of Rupees Five Million Six Hundred
and Twenty-one Thousand One Hundred and Twenty-three and
cents Sixty-two only (Rs. 5,621,123.62) on the said Bond and the
Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC under the power
vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)
Act, No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the property and
premises morefully described in the Schedule, hereto and mortgaged
to Hatton National Bank PLC by the said Bond No. 1920 be sold
by Public Auction by P. Muthukumarana, Licensed Auctioneer of
Colombo for recovery of the said sum of (Rs. 5,621,123.62)
together with further interest from 06th May, 2015 to date of sale
together with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less
payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1b4

depicted in Plan No. 2364A dated 19th July, 2006 made by
W. A. R. S. Perera, Licensed-Surveyor from and out of the land called
Bakmeegahadeniya together with the buildings and everything standing
thereon bearing Assessment No. 011/02 Battiyawatta Road situated
at Thumbowila within the Urban Council Limits of Kesbewa within
the Grama Niladhari Division of 576A, Thumbowila North and
Divisional Secretary’s Division of Kesbewa in the Palle Pattu of
Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo Western Province and which
said Lot 1b4 is bounded on the North by Lot 1b3, on the East by Land
of C. D. Johanise, on the South by Lot 1b5 and on the West by Road-
12ft. wide and containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.)
according to the said Plan No. 2364A.

The aforesaid allotment of land is a divided and defined portion
from and out of the following allotment of land to wit:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1b

depicted in Plan No. 2364 dated 18th July, 2006 made by W. A. R. S.
Perera, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land called
Bakmeegahadeniya situated at Thumbowila within the Urban Council
Limits of Kesbewa within the Grama Niladhari Division of 576A,
Thumbowila North and Divisional Secretary’s Division of  Kesbewa

in the Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo Western
Province and which said Lot 1b is bounded on the North by Battiyawatta
Road and land of C. D. Johanise, on the East by Land of C. D.
Johanise, on the South by Lots 1c and 1g and on the West by 1g and
Battiyawatta Road and containing in extent Thirty-six decimal Three
Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 36.30P.) according to the said Plan
No. 2364 and registered under title C 306/99 at the Land Registry of
Delkanda, Nugegoda.

K. A. L. T. RANAWEERA,
DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

07-1134/1

COMMERCIAL  BANK  OF  CEYLON  PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration
No. PQ 116) under Section 4 of the Recovery of

Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)
Act, No. 4 of 1990

Loan Account Nos. : 329515, 680568 and 680564.
Royal Builders.

AT a meeting held on 03rd January, 2014 the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved specially and unanimously
as follows:

Whereas, Mihindukulasuriya Kingsley Lal Fernando carrying
on business as the sole proprietor under the name and style of
Royal Builders as the Obligor has made default in the payment due
on Bond Nos. 3929 dated 30th November, 2005 attested by W. F.
E. S. Fernando, Notary Public of Colombo and 77 dated 15th May,
2006 attested by B. A. P. S. Balasuriya, Notary Public of Colombo
in favour of Commercial Bank of Ceylon Limited now known as
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (the land morefully described in
the 01st Schedule hereto).

And whereas Mihindukulasuriya Kingsley Lal Fernando carrying
on business as the sole proprietor under the name and style of
Royal Builders as the Obligor has made default in the payment due
on Bond Nos. 4893 dated 07th November, 2006 and 5283 dated
03rd April, 2007 both attested by W. F. E. S. Fernando, Notary
Public of Colombo and 671 dated 11th March, 2008 attested by
S. S. M. Ranasinghe, Notary Public of Colombo in favour of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon Limited now known as Commercial
Bank of Ceylon PLC (the land morefully described in the 2nd
Schedule hereto).

and there is now due and owing to the Commercial Bank of
Ceylon PLC as at 01st November, 2013 a sum of Rupees Twenty
Million Eight Hundred and Sixty-five Thousand Two Hundred and
Twenty-four and cents Fifty-five (Rs. 20,865,224.55) and the
Board of Directors of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC under the
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powers vested by Recovery of  Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)
Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the properties and
premises morefully described in the 01st and 2nd Schedules hereto
and mortgaged to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC by the said
Bond Nos. 3929, 77, 4893, 5283 and 671 be sold by Public Auction
by Mr. L. B. Senanayake, Licensed Auctioneer of Thrivanka and
Senanayake, Auctioneers of  No. 182, 3rd Floor, Hulftsdorp
Street, Colombo 12 for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees
Twenty Million Eight Hundred and Sixty-five Thousand Two
Hundred and Twenty-four and cents Fifty-five (Rs. 20,865,224.55)
with further interest on a sum of Rs. 3,410,143.74 at 20% per
annum and on a sum of Rs. 8,378,045.89 at 15% per annum from
02nd November, 2013 to date of sale together with costs of
Advertising and any other charges incurred less payments (if any)
since received.

THE 1st SCHEDULE

All those divided and defined contiguous allotments of land marked
Lot 4 and 5 depicted in Plan No. 592 dated 07th May, 1963 made by
C. S. Veeravelu, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Periyavillu
Totem situated at Chennaikudiruppu Village in Kadawath Sathare
Division in the District of Puttalam North Western Province and
which said Lot 4 and 5 is bounded on the North by remaining Portion
claimed by Abdul Hameed, on the East by Lot 6 claimed by Abdul
Hameed, on the South by Main Road from Puttalam to Kurunegala
and on the West by Waithalingam Ponnamma and containing in extent
Twenty-two decimal Five Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 22.50P.)
according to the said Plan No. 592 and registered under title F 114/196
at the Puttalam Land Registry.

Which aforesaid allotment of land according to a recent survey
and formed by the amalgamation of following allotment of land:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 4709 dated 26th September, 2004 made by
J. A. V. Rajanayagam, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Periyavillu
Totem bearing Assessment No. 213 situated at Chennaikudiruppu
Village in Ward No. 3 in A. G. A’s Division of  Puttalam in the District
of Puttalam North Western Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded
on the North by Uppali and Vansawathi Veerasinghe, on the East by
Lot 6 in Plan No. 592 dated 07th May, 1963, Wansawathie Weerasinghe,
on the South by Kurunegala Road and on the West by Lot 3 in Plan
No. 592 (Uppali) and containing in extent Twenty Perches (0A., 0R.,
20P.) or 0.0506 Hectares according to the said Plan No. 4709.

THE 2nd SCHEDULE

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A
depicted in Plan No. 4749 dated 05th October, 2004 made by J. A. V.
Rajanayagama, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Nandawana
Estate situated at Prachchivillu in Ward No. 3, Chenakudirippu within
the Municipal Council Limits of Puttalam in the District of Puttalam
North Western Province and which said Lot A is bounded on the
North by Rajara Ummah Assenchodoos Path (12 feet wide) and Lot
2 in Plan No. 2532, on the East by land of H. M. Wahab and others,
on the South by land of M. A. H. Cassim and on the West by land of

M. A. M. Cassim and containing in extent Eleven Acres One Rood
and Thirty Perches (11A., 1R., 30P.) according to the said Plan
No. 4749.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot B
depicted in Plan No. 4749 dated 05th October, 2004 made by J. A. V.
Rajanayagama, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Nandawana
Estate situated at Prachchivillu in Ward No. 3, Chenakudirippu within
the Municipal Council Limits of  Puttalam in the District of Puttalam
North Western Province and which said Lot B is bounded on the
North by Kurunegala Road, on the East by Lot 2 in Plan No. 2532, on
the South by Lot 4 in Plan No. 2532 and on the West by Assenchodoos
and containing in extent Three Roods (0A., 3R., 0P.) according to the
said Plan No. 4749 and registered under title F 119/77 at the Puttalam
Land Registry.

The aforesaid allotment of land Lot A depicted in Plan No. 4749
described above is a resurvey of the following allotment of land:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 4
depicted in Plan No. 2532 dated 10th August, 1982 made by
N. Ponnadurai, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Nandawana
Estate situated at Prachchivillu in Ward No. 3, Chenakudirippu
aforesaid and which said Lot 4 is bounded on the North by land of
Hajara Umma Mohamed Huda, Jabeer, Ajuwan, Lot 1 (Road - 12 feet
wide) separating the land of Hajra Umma and land of H. M. A. Hudha,
on the East by land of Nawas Group and land of H. M. Wahab and
others, on the South and West by land of M. A. M. Cassim and
containing in extent Eleven Acres One Rood and Thirty Perches
(11A., 1R., 30P.) according to the said Plan No. 2532 and registered
under title F 75/294 at the Puttalam Land Registry.

Together with the right of way in over and along the Road
Reservation marked Lot B depicted in Plan No. 2532.

All those two (2) contiguous allotments of land marked Lots 1 and
2 depicted in Plan No. 2605 dated 05th April, 1997 made by
N. Sankaralingam, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Nandawana
Estate situated at Prachchivillu in Ward No. 3, Chenakudirippu within
the Municipal Council Limits of Puttalam in the District of Puttalam
North Western Province and which said contiguous allotments of land
marked Lots 1 and 2 are together bounded on the North by Kurunegala
Road, on the East by Nawas Thotam, on the South by land of S. M.
Mahuroof and Nawas Thotam and on the West by land of S. H. Hudha
and containing in extent Fifteen Acres and Twenty-six Perches
(15A., 0R., 26P.) or 6.136 Hectares according to the said Plan
No. 2605 and registered under title F 128/193 at the Puttalam Land
Registry.

Mrs. R. R. DUNUWILLE,
Company Secretary.

07-1199
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COMMERCIAL  BANK  OF  CEYLON  PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration
No. PQ 116) under Section 4 of the Recovery of

Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)
Act, No. 4 of 1990

Loan Account No. : 1286267.
Pinnagala Muhandiramlage Upul Nishantha Wijesinghe.
Dehipitiya Vidanelage Thanuja Thushari Damayanthi.

AT a meeting held on 31st October, 2014 the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolve specially and unanimously
as follows:

Whereas, Pinnagala Muhandiramlage Upul Nishantha
Wijesinghe and Dehipitiya Vidanelage Thanuja Thushari
Damayanthi as Obligors have made default in the payment due on
Bond No. 5795 dated 26th July, 2012 attested by B. D.
Abeyawardene, Notary Public of Ratnapura in favour of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon  PLC (the land and machinery and
equipments morefully described in the 01st Schedule hereto).

And whereas Pinnagala Muhandiramlage Upul Nishantha
Wijesinghe and Dehipitiya Vidanelage Thanuja Thushari
Damayanthi as Obligors have made default in the payment due on
Bond No. 5798 dated 26th July, 2012 attested by B. D.
Abeyawardene, Notary Public of Ratnapura in favour of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (the land morefully described in
the 2nd Schedule hereto).

And whereas Pinnagala Muhandiramlage Upul Nishantha
Wijesinghe and Dehipitiya Vidanelage Thanuja Thushari
Damayanthi as Obligors and Dehipitiya Vidanelage Thanuja
Thushari Damayanthi as the Mortgagor have made default in the
payment due on Bond No. 1910 dated 26th July, 2012 attested by
M. A. C. S. Jayasuriya, Notary Public of Colombo in favour of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (the land morefully described in
the 3rd Schedule hereto).

and there is now due and owing to the Commercial Bank of
Ceylon PLC as at 17th September, 2014 a sum of Rupees Twenty-
three Million One Hundred and Twenty-nine Thousand Five
Hundred and Five and cents Fifty-seven (Rs. 23,129,505.57) on
the said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Commercial Bank
of Ceylon PLC under the powers vested by Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve
that the properties and premises morefully described in the 01st,
2nd and 3rd Schedules hreto and mortgaged to the Commercial
Bank of Ceylon PLC by the said Bond Nos. 5795, 5798 and 1910
be sold by Public Auction by Mr. L. B. Senanayake, Licensed
Auctioneer of Thrivanka and Senanayake, Auctioneers of
No. 182, 3rd Floor, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 for the recovery
of the said sum of Rupees Twenty-three Million One Hundred and
Twenty-nine Thousand Five Hundred and Five and cents Fifty-
seven (Rs. 23,129,505.57) with further interest on a sum of
Rs. 18,088,000 at 16.5% per annum from 18th September, 2014 to
date of sale together with costs of Advertising and any other
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE 1st SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted in Plan
No. 5176 dated 14th June, 2012 made by M. M. D. S. Shantha,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Part of Ambalangoda Watta”
together with the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else
standing thereon situated at Madampe Village within the Grama
Niladhari Division of Madampe-North in the Divisional Secretary’s
Division of Godakawela within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of
Godakawela in Meda Pattu of Atakalan Korale in the Distict of
Ratnapura Sabaragamuwa Province and which said Land is bounded
on the North by Gallenagodayaya, on the East by Lot 3 in Plan No. 373
made by L. U. Kannangara, Licensed Surveyor, on the South by Main
Road and on the West by Lot 1 in the said Plan No. 373 and containing
in extent Two Roods (0A., 2R., 0P.) as per the said Plan No. 5176.

Which said land is a resurvey of the following:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 2
depicted in Plan No. 373 dated 14th November, 1974 made by L. U.
Kannangara, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Ambalangoda
Walawwatta alias Ambalangoda Watta” together with the buildings,
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon situated at
Madampe Village aforesaid and which said Lot 2 is bounded on the
North by Gallenagodayaya, on the East by the remaining portion of the
same land marked Lot 3 in Plan No. 373, on the South by Main Road
from Ratnapura to Embilipitiya and on the West by remaining portion
of the same land marked Lot 1 in the said Plan No. 373 and containing
in extent Two Roods (0A., 2R., 0P.) as per the said Plan No. 373 and
registered under Volume/Folio F 293/242 at the Ratnapura Land
Registry.

Together with the following Machinery and equipments:

01. 45.5” CCCS A Tea Roller 01
02. 47” CCC SA Tea Roller 01
03. 40” CCC SA Tea Roller 01
04. 12” x 3 1/2 CCC Reciprocating Roll Breaker 02
05. CCC 6FT Drier 01
06. PPJ 3T Stalk Extractor C/W Conveyor 01
07. CCC Double Tea Packer 01
08. “Walkers” Michie Sifter 02
09. Rotary Tea Sifter 02
10. Suction Winnower 01
11. “Balmerlowria” Rotary Made Tea Sifter C/W Conveyor 01
12. Myddleton Stalk Extractor 01
13. “Gunther” 25” Tea Blower 01
14. Color Seperator 01
15. Scaler Electronic 01
16. Suction Winnower 01
17. Tarry Nipper Breaker 01
18. Gibber Tea Cutter 01
19. Drier 4ft Fire wood 01
20. Humudufters 02

THE 2nd SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted in Plan No.
3599 dated 12th April, 2008 made by M. M. D. S. Shantha, Licensed
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Surveyor of the land called “Ambalangoda Watta” together with the
buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon
situated at Madampe Village within the Grama Niladhari Division of
Madampe North in the Divisional Secretary’s Division and Pradeshiya
Sabha Limits of Godakawela in Meda Pattu of Atakalan Korale in the
District of Ratnapura Sabaragamuwa Province and which said Land
is bounded on the North by Gallenagoda Yaya, on the East by Lot 2
in Plan No. 373 made by L. U. Kannangara, Licensed Surveyor, on
the South by Main Road and on the West by Main Road and containing
in extent Thirty Perches (0A., 0R., 30P.) as per the said Plan No.
3599.

Which said land is a resurvey of the following:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1 in Plan
No. 373 dated 14th November, 1974 made by L. U. Kannangara,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Ambalangoda Walawwatta
alias Ambalangoda Watta” together with the buildings, trees,
plantations and everything else standing thereon situated at Madampe
Village aforesaid and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by
Gallenagoda Yaya, on the East by Portion of the same land depicted
as Lot 2 in the said Plan No. 373, on the South and West by Main Road
and containing in extent Thirty-one Perches (0A., 0R., 31P.) as per
the said Plan No. 373 and registered under Volume/Folio F 264/89 at
the Ratnapura Land Registry.

THE 3rd SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A
depicted in Plan No. 3643 dated 1st August, 2010 made by M. W.
Thepulangoda, Licensed Surveyor (being an amalgamation and
resurvey of part of Lot E depicted in Plan No. 151 dated 2nd June,
1994 made by H. Devasurendra, Licensed Surveyor (which is being
a subdivision of Lot 2 depicted in the said Plan No. 104) Lot A,
depictedin Plan No. 1075 dated 09th October, 1996 made by P. C.
Fernandopulle, Licensed Surveyor and Lot D depicted in the said Plan
No. 151 dated 2nd June, 1994) of the land called “Batadombagahalanda”
together with the premises bearing Assessment No. 11, Uluwahukare
Road situted at Weliwita Village in the Grama Niladhari Division of
475A Mahadeniya in the Divisional Secretary’s Division of Kaduwela
within the Municipal Council Limits of Kaduwela in Palle Pattu of
Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo Western Province and
which said Lot A is bounded on the North by land of D. A. D. N.
Siriwardena, Road 12ft wide and land of H. T. Gunaratne, on the East
by land of K. R. L. Jayaratne and Road (6ft. wide), on the South by
land of H. D. R. Nilmini and Road (10ft. wide) and on the West by land
of U. G. N. Ranasinghe and land of D. A. D. N. Siriwardena and
containing in extent Twenty-six decimal Six Naught Perches (0A.,
0R., 26.60P.) together with the buildings, trees, plantations and
everything else standing thereon according to said Plan No. 3643 and
registered under Volume/Folio G 1945/01 at the Land Registry of
Homagama.

Together with the right of way over and along the Reservation for
Road marked Lot C depicted in Plan No. 151 dated 02nd June, 1994
made by H. Dewasurendra, Licensed Surveyor.

Mrs. RANJANI GAMAGE,
Company Secretary.

04th November, 2014.

07-1198

BANK  OF  CEYLON

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act, No. 34

of 1968 and Law No. 10 of 1974

AT a meeting held on 10.06.2015 the Board of Directors of this Bank
resolved specially and unanimously:

1. That a sum of Rupees Five Million Eight Hundred and Fifty-one
Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty-one and cents Twenty-five
(Rs. 5,851,961.25) on account of the principal and interest up to
23.03.2015 and together with further interest on Rupees Five Million
(Rs. 5,000,000) at the rate of Fourteen (14%) per centum per annum
from 24.03.2015 till date of payment is due from M/s Samantha
Enterprises of Kahatapitiya, Kananvita, Horana (sole proprietor,
Mr. Kukulage Don Janaka Pushpakumara also known as Kukulage
Janaka Pushpakumara) on Mortgage Bond No. 632 dated 11th
September, 2012 attested by S. T. Perera, Notary Public.

2. That in terms of section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon Ordinance
(Cap. 397) and its amendments Mr. Thusitha Karunaratne, M/s T &
H Auctions, the Auctioneer of No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa
be authorized and empowered to sell by public auction by property
mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon and described in the Schedules
hereunder, for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Five Million
Eight Hundred and Fifty-one Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty-one
and cents Twenty-five (Rs. 5,851,961.25) on overdraft on the said
Bond No. 632 dated 11.09.2012, and together with interest as
aforesaid from 24.03.2015 to date of sale, and costs and monies
recoverable under Section 26 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance
and the Senior Manager of Horana Branch of the Bank of Ceylon to
publish notice of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the said Bank
of Ceylon Ordinance.

THE 1st SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 2
depicted in Plan No. 296A/1996 dated 02nd April, 1996 made by
K. Kannangara, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Ampitiya
situated at Uduwa Village in the Grama Niladhari’s Division of
No. 614C Kuda Uduwa in Kumbuke Pattu of Raigam Korale within
the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Horana (Kananwila Sub-Office) and
within the Divisional Secretariat of Horana and in the District of
Kalutara Western Province and which said Lot 2 is bounded on the
North by Main Road, on the East by Road and Lots 10 and 11, on the
South by Property of W. D. Abis Singho, W. D. Ruwinis Singho and
Others and on the West by 1/4th portion of Lots 8 and 9 and containing
in extent One Acre and Two Roods (1A., 2R., 0P.) together with the
buildings, trees, plantations and everything standing thereon according
to the said Plan No. 296A/1996 and Registered in C 195/37 at the Land
Registry Horana.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of Ceylon,

V. D. JAYALATH,
Senior Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Horana.

07-1079
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BANK  OF  CEYLON—PANADURA BRANCH

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act, No. 34

of 1968 and Law No. 10 of 1974

AT a meeting held on 17.06.2014 the Board of Directors of this Bank
resolved specially and unanimously:

1. That a sum of Rupees Five Million Five Hundred and Eighty-six
Thousand One Hundred and Forty-two and cents Ninety-six
(Rs. 5,586,142.96) on account of the principal and interest up to
28.04.2014 and together with further interest on Rupees Four Million
Three Hundred and Thirty-three Thousand Three Hundred and
Twenty (Rs.4,333,320.00) at the rate of Thirteen (13%) per centum
per annum from 29.04.2014 till date of payment is due from
Mr. Don Sirisoma Jayathunga and Ms. Jayathungage Dulmini Saumya
Jayathunga, both of No. 2C/1, Perakum Mawatha, Minuwanpitiya,
Panadura, presently at No. 26/1, Perakum Mawatha, Minuwanpitiya,
Panadura on Mortgage Bond No. 2927 dated 22.08.2011 attested by
D. Kitulgoda, Notary Public.

2. That in terms of section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon Ordinance
(Cap. 397) and its amendments Mr. Thusitha Karunarathne, M/s T &
H Auctions, the Licensed Auctioneer of No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha,
Kolonnawa be authorized and empowered to sell by public auction
property mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon and described in the
Schedules hereunder, for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Five
Million Five Hundred and Eighty-six Thousand One Hundred and
Forty-two and cents Ninety-six (Rs. 5,586,142.96) on the said Bond
No. 2927 dated 22.08.2011, and together with interest as aforesaid
from 29.04.2014 to date of sale, and costs and monies recoverable
under Section 26 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and the Senior
Manager of Panadura Super Grade Branch of the Bank of Ceylon to
publish notice of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the said Bank
of Ceylon Ordinance.

THE 1st SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 2
depicted in Plan No. 46 dated 09th November, 1947 made by D. J. P.
Magodaratne, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Uldiyawalakada”
together with buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing
thereon situated at Minuwanpitiya in Panadura Talpiti Debadda of
Panadura Totamune in Gramaseva Niladhari Division of 679/B,
Walana South within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Panadura and
within the Divisional Secretariat of Panadura in the District of
Kalutara Western Province and which said Lot 2 is bounded on the
North by Lot A in Plan No. 46, on the East by Uldiyawalakada Owita,
on the South by Lot 1 and Lot 3 (Road Reservation) in Plan No. 477
and on the West by Lot D in Plan No. 46 and containing in extent
Twenty-three decimal Five Perches (0A., 0R., 23.5P.) as per the said
Plan No. 46 and registered in F 526/139 at the Land Registry,
Panadura.

Which said land according to a recent Plan No. 2571 dated 20th
March, 1992 made by G. Ambepitiya, Licensed Surveyor is described
as follows:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 2
depicted in the said Plan No. 2571 of the land called “Uldiyawalakada”
together with buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing
thereon situated at Minuwanpitiya aforesaid and which said Lot 2 is
bounded on the North by Lot A of Uldiyawalakada alias
Kahatagahawatta, on the East by Uldiyawalakada, on the South by
Lot 1 and Lot 3 of Uldiyawalakada alias Kahatagahawatta, depicted
in Plan No. 447 dated 16th January, 1986 made by Y. Karunasena
Costa, Licensed Surveyor and on the West by Lot D of Uldiyawalakada
alias Kahatagahawatta and containing in extent Twenty-three decimal
Five Perches (0A., 0R., 23.5P.) as per the said Plan No. 2571.

THE 2nd SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 46
depicted in the said Plan No. 46 of the land called “Uldiyawalakada”
situated at Minuwanpitiya aforesaid and which said Lot 46 is bounded
on the North by Kosgahawatta, on the East by Lot A and C in Plan
No. 46, on the South by Road to Tantrimulla and on the West by Lot
B in Plan No. 46 and containing in extent Nine Perches (0A., 0R., 9P.)
as per the said Plan No. 46 and registered in F 283/172 at the Land
Registry, Panadura.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 03
depicted in the said Plan No. 477 of the land called “Uldiyawalakada”
situated at Minuwanpitiya aforesaid and which said Lot 03 is bounded
on the North by Lot 2 in Plan No. 477, on the East by Lot 1 in Plan
No. 477, on the South by Tanthrimulla Road and on the West by Lot
D (Road Reservation) in Plan No. 46 and containing in extent One
decimal Three Perches (0A., 0R., 1.3P.) as per the said Plan No. 477
and registered in F 283/173 at the Land Registry, Panadura.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of Ceylon,

Mr. N. D. L. PUSHPAKUMARA,
Senior Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Panadura.

07-1078

PEOPLE’S  BANK—KOTAHENA  BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank
Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of

1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank, under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 28.05.2015.

Whereas, 1. Sinnaiah Rajagopal, 2. Nithyaprabha Rajagopal, 3.
Velayutham Subramaniam of No. 221/4, Nayakakanda, Hendala,
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Wattala have made default in payment due on Mortgage Bond
No. 4977, dated 29.11.2010 attested by A. D. R. Mendis, Notary
Public of Colombo, in favour of the People’s Bank and there is now
due and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Six Million
Six Hundred and Sixty-eight Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifty-
nine and cents Eighty-nine only (Rs. 6,668,859.89) on the said
Bond No. 4977. The Board Directors of the People’s Bank under
the power vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of
1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that
the property and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said
Mortgage Bond be sold by Public Auction by Ervin Perera,
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the sum of
Rupees Five Hundred and Sixty-four Thousand Six Hundred and
Twenty-two and cents Thirty-seven (Rs. 564,622.37) together
with interest at 17% per annum from 02.01.2015 and Rupees Four
Million One Hundred and Sixty Thousand Six Hundred and Sixteen
and cents Forty-eight (Rs. 4,160,616.48) together with interest at
17% per annum from 02.01.2015, and Rupees One Million Three
Hundred and Seventy-five Thousand Seven Hundred and Thirty-
two and cents Sixty-seven (Rs. 1,375,732.67) together with
interest at 17% per annum from 02.01.2015 to date of sale with
costs and other charges of sale less payments (if any) since
received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked as “Lot 1”
depicted in Plan No. 4348 dated 06th day of May, 2005 made by Hugh
R. Samarasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land called and known as
“Kajugahawatta” situated at Hendala within the Hendala Sub-office
of Wattala Pradeshiya Sabha in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale
South in the District of Gampaha, Western Province and which said
“Lot 1” is bounded on the North by Lot “F” in Plan No. 738 made by
S. Lokanathan, Licensed Surveyor, on the East by Lot “B4” in Plan

No. 786, on the South by Lot “B8” (Road) and Lot “B2” in Plan
No. 786, and on the West by Lots J and I in Plan No. 738 and made
by S. Lokanathan, Licensed Surveyor and containing in extent Sixteen
decimal Five Seven Perches (0A., 0R., 16.57P.) or (0.0419 Hectares)
together with buildings, plantations and everything else standing
thereon and registered under B798/53 at the Land Registry of
Colombo.

The above land being a recent survey of the land described below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked as “Lot A”
depicted in Plan No. 726 dated 13th day of July, 1996 made by D. D.
C. A. Perera, Licenced Surveyor of the land called and known as
“Kajugahawatte” situated in the Hendala Village within the Hendala
Sub-office of Wattala Pradeshiya Sabha in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru
Korale in the District of Gampaha Western Province and which said
“Lot A” and bounded on the North by land of P. M. W. Dias, on the
East by Lot “B4” on the South by Lot “B3” (Road) and B2 (now land
of Piyadasa Kalansuriya) and on the West by land of  N. W. L. G. Dias
and containing in extent Sixteen decimal Nought Nine Perches
(0A., 0R., 16.09P.) together with buildings, plantations and everything
else thereon.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Colombo North.

People’s Bank,
Zonal Head Office-(Western  Zone-01).

07-1157
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